
The following sets forth some important highlights of the past year:
• Our rental revenues increased in 2006 to $33,370,000, a 22.5% 

increase from $27,232,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005.
This was a direct result of our active acquisition program.

• Due to our acquisition activities, our real estate portfolio, net of accu-
mulated depreciation, increased by $93,719,000 (36.3%) to
$351,841,000 at the end of 2006 from $258,122,000 at the end of
2005. Our investment in unconsolidated joint ventures decreased to

$7,014,000 (a decrease of $20,321,000 or 74.3%) from
$27,335,000 at the end of 2005. The decrease in our invest-

ment in unconsolidated joint ventures resulted primarily
from the sale of the nine movie theater properties owned

by our two movie theater joint ventures.

• As of December 31, 2006, we owned 66 properties,
including a 50% tenancy in common interest in

one property and participated in seven joint ven-
tures that owned six properties (including two va-

cant properties held for sale). One of the vacant prop-
erties was sold by a joint venture in March 2007 and will

result in a gain to us estimated to be $600,000. The 71 prop-
erties owned by us and our joint ventures are located in twenty-

eight states and have an aggregate of approximately 5.9 million
square feet of space (including all space for properties in which we

have a joint venture participation and our tenancy in common interest).

• Our net income for 2006 increased to $36,425,000, a 71.2% increase,
from $21,280,000 in 2005, and our diluted earnings per share
increased to $3.67 in 2006 from $2.16 in 2005. Significantly benefit-
ing net income in the current year is the increase in rental revenues
year over year, our share of the gain recognized by our movie theater
joint ventures and the gain relating to the sale of the company owned
theater property. Net income in 2005 benefited from a gain on the sale
of air rights of $10,248,000, or $1.04 per share.

• In analyzing net income year versus year, one must take note of the
fact that in 2006 the joint ventures which sold the movie theater prop-
erties paid a mortgage prepayment premium of $10,538,000 (50%
thereof, or $5,269,000, was allocated to us), which was considered as
interest expense on the books of the joint ventures and was not net-
ted against the gain recognized on the sale. The result of this required
accounting treatment had the effect of increasing our share of the gain
by $5,269,000 and decreasing our joint ventures’ operating income by
the same amount. This accounting treatment did not affect our report-
ed net income or net income per share, but causes the operating
results of our joint ventures to appear weaker than they actually were.

• Funds from operations (FFO) for 2006 decreased 48.6% year over
year to $13,707,000, or $1.38 per share, from $26,658,000, or $2.71
per share. Funds from operations for 2006 were negatively impacted
by our share of the mortgage prepayment premiums of $5,269,000,
or $.53 per share, paid by the movie theater joint ventures in connec-
tion with the sale of the movie theater properties. As mentioned above,
these prepayment premiums are considered as interest expense on
the books of the joint ventures and are not netted against the gain rec-
ognized on the sale. The inclusion in FFO in 2005 of the $10,248,000
gain ($1.04 per diluted share) from the sale of air rights further affected
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We are proud of our accomplishments in
2006. It was an excellent and prosperous year
for us. In addition to our core business 
activities, which were very positive, we 
benefited in 2006 from the significant gain we 
recognized from the sale of all but one of
our movie theater properties.

A number of years ago, the motion picture theater industry
was not looked upon favorably by the investment and real
estate communities because the older, non-stadium movie theaters
were often producing negative operating results. After a thorough
analysis of the motion picture theater industry, we determined that the
acquisition of “new” stadium style movie theater properties, which were
producing very positive operating results, provided an excellent oppor-
tunity for both current operating income and appreciation in value. Due
to the real estate and investment communities’ negative view of the
industry, we believed that we could buy well located net leased stadium
theater properties at prices which would provide very favorable returns.
Through two joint ventures we formed (in which we ultimately held a
50% interest), nine stadium theater properties were purchased and we
purchased one stadium theater property solely for the company. Over the
years, these investments provided us with an excellent return on our
investment and in 2006, when the view of this industry by the investment
and real estate communities had become quite positive, we recognized
the opportunity to realize a significant gain on the sale of these assets
and took advantage of that opportunity.

In September and October 2006, our two joint ventures sold their 
portfolio of stadium movie theater properties for a total consideration of
$152,658,000. Our share of the gain on sale was $26,908,000, or $2.71
per diluted share. In addition, we sold the company owned stadium
movie theater for $15,227,000, resulting in a $3,660,000 gain, or $.37
per diluted share.

During the year, we continued to be actively engaged in acquiring addi-
tional properties. In 2006, we purchased 22 properties in eleven states
for a total consideration of $111,872,000, placed an aggregate of
$35,900,000 of first mortgage loans on ten of these properties and
assumed one existing first mortgage loan of $26,957,000 secured by
eleven of these properties. We continue to actively pursue property
acquisitions which fit our investment criteria and will use our available
cash, cash provided from operations, funds derived from placement of
mortgages and our $62,500,000 credit line for this purpose.

To Our
Stockholders
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the FFO comparison year versus year. If the prepayment expense is
netted against the gain recognized by the movie theater ventures
(rather than being treated as an operating expense) and the gain from
sale of the air rights is excluded from the calculation of FFO in 2005,
the comparative FFO year versus year would have been $18,976,000,
or $1.91 per share, in 2006 and $16,410,000, or $1.67 per share, in
2005. Although FFO (presented elsewhere in this report) and the
adjusted FFO which we have presented in this paragraph may be a
useful and supplemental measure in analyzing our operating perform-
ance, it should not be considered as an alternative to net income as a
reliable measure of our operating performance nor should it be con-
sidered as an alternative to cash flows from operating, investing or
financing activities (as defined by GAAP) as measures of liquidity. The
calculation of FFO for each of the five years in the five year period
ended December 31, 2006 and the calculation of adjusted FFO pre-
sented in this paragraph for the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005 can be found on page 29 of this Annual Report.

• In 2006, our operating expenses increased by 30.2% from
$10,224,000 to $13,313,000. Of this increase, $1,563,000 represents
an increase in depreciation and amortization expense due to our own-
ership of additional properties. General and administrative expenses
increased year over year by approximately $1,110,000 due to a num-
ber of factors, including an increase in payroll and payroll related
expenses primarily due to the compensation paid to our president
(elected effective January 1, 2006) for all 2006 and to staff increases,
an increase in compensation expense relating to our restricted stock
program, an increase in professional fees incurred in connection with
investigations by the SEC and our Audit Committee, and an increase
in allocated expenses due to the increase in the level of our business
activities. Additionally, 2006 includes $490,000 of federal excise tax
which is based on taxable income generated but not distributed.

• In 2006, we continued to pay quarterly cash distributions to our 
common stockholders. In the last quarter of 2006, we increased our

To Our Stockholders |CONTINUED

ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC.
is a self-administered and self-managed real
estate investment trust incorporated under
the laws of Maryland on December 20, 1982.
The primary business of the company is to
acquire, own and manage a geographically
diversified portfolio of retail, industrial, office,
and other properties under long term leases.
Substantially all of our leases are “net leases”
under which the tenant is responsible for real
estate taxes, insurance and ordinary mainte-
nance and repairs.

We acquired our portfolio of properties by
balancing fundamental real estate analysis
with tenant credit evaluation. Our analysis
focuses primarily on the intrinsic value of a
property, determined primarily by its location
and by local demographics. We also evaluate
a tenant’s financial ability to meet operational 

needs and lease obligations. We believe that
our emphasis on property value enables us 
to achieve better returns on our acquired
properties and also enhances our ability to re-
rent or dispose of a property on favorable
terms upon the expiration or early termina-
tion of a lease. Consequently, we believe that
the weighting of these factors in our analysis
enables us to achieve attractive current
returns with potential growth through 
contractual rent increases and property
appreciation. 

Certain statements contained in this letter are “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. Such forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual
results to differ materially from future results expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. For additional information about
the company, please see the company’s most recent Form 10K dated March 14, 2007, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 15, 2007, and other documents filed by the company with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

ONE LIBERTY
PROPERTIES, INC.

The common stock of One Liberty trades on the New York Stock Exchange, under the symbol OLP. As of April 20, 2007, there were 10,055,881 common
shares outstanding in the hands of approximately 3,600 stockholders.
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quarterly distributions by 9% to $.36 per share per quarter. For the
first three quarters of 2006 we paid a cash distribution of $.33 per
share, per quarter. In 2006, we paid out total cash distributions to our
common stockholders of $13,420,000.

• We have seen considerable growth in our company as rental revenues
have increased over the past two years by 60.2%, a direct result of the
growth in our real estate investments, net of depreciation, by
$123,305,000 from December 2004 to December 2006. Investing in
“net leased properties” has become very competitive in the last few
years, but we have been able to make quality acquisitions in the past
and we have every expectation that with our current cash position and
the availability under our credit line we will continue to make benefi-
cial acquisitions in the years to come.

We would like to take this opportunity to thank VNB New York Corp.,
Bank Leumi, USA, Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company and Israel
Discount Bank of New York, the lending institutions which participate in
our credit facility, for extending our $62,500,000 credit facility for three
years to March 31, 2010. We remain most appreciative of the confi-
dence which they have shown in us.

We would also like to thank our stockholders and joint venture partners
for the trust and confidence that they have shown in us. We are also
most appreciative of the dedication to our activities by our directors,
officers and employees.

Sincerely yours,

Fredric H. Gould Patrick J. Callan, Jr.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer President

April 16, 2007
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Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005

Rental income $      33,370 $      27,232
Operating expenses 13,313 10,224
Operating income $      20,057 $      17,008
Income from continuing operations                                                                                                            $ 31,882 (a)          $  19,182(b)
Income from discontinued operations 4,543 2,098
Net income                                                                                                                                              $ 36,425(a)            $ 21,280(b)
Net income per common share-basic and diluted:
Income from continuing operations                                                                                                           $     3.21(a)            $    1.95(b)
Income from discontinued operations .46 .21
Net income                                                                                                                                              $         3.67 $         2.16
Weighted average number of common shares-diluted 9,934 9,843

December 31,
2006 2005

Real estate investments, net $ 351,841 $ 258,122
Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures 7,014 27,335
Total assets 422,037 330,583
Mortgages and loan payable 227,923 167,472
Total liabilities 241,912 175,064
Stockholders’ equity 180,125 155,519

(a) Includes gain on dispositions of real estate of unconsolidated joint ventures of $26,908 or $2.71 per share.
(b) Includes gain on sale of air rights of $10,248 or $1.04 per share.

Financial Highlights
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)
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TOTAL ASSETS NET INCOMERENTAL INCOME

422.0

(a) Includes gain on dispositions of real estate of unconsolidated joint ventures of $26.9 million.
(b) Includes gain on sale of air rights of $10.2 million.
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December 31,
2006 2005

ASSETS

Real estate investments, at cost

Land $    72,431 $    53,846

Buildings and improvements 307,679 226,200

380,110 280,046

Less accumulated depreciation 28,269 21,924

351,841 258,122

Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures 7,014 27,335

Cash and cash equivalents 34,013 26,749

Restricted cash 7,409 -

Unbilled rent receivable 8,218 6,613

Escrow, deposits and other receivables 2,251 4,027

Investment in BRT Realty Trust at market (related party) 831 717

Deferred financing costs 3,062 2,822

Other assets (including available-for-sale securities at market of $1,372 and $163) 2,145 744

Unamortized intangible lease assets 5,253 3,454

$  422,037 $    330,583

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Liabilities:

Mortgages and loan payable $   227,923 $ 167,472

Dividends payable 3,587 3,255

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 4,391 3,554

Unamortized intangible lease liabilities 6,011 783

Total liabilities 241,912 175,064

Commitments and contingencies - -  

Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $1 par value; 12,500 shares authorized;

none issued - -

Common stock, $1 par value; 25,000 shares authorized;

9,823 and 9,770 shares issued and outstanding 9,823 9,770

Paid-in capital 134,826 134,645

Accumulated other comprehensive income – net unrealized

gain on available-for-sale securities 935 818

Unearned compensation                                                                                                                            -                                    (1,250)

Accumulated undistributed net income 34,541 11,536

Total stockholders’ equity 180,125 155,519

$    422,037 $   330,583

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)
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Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Revenues:

Rental income $    33,370 $ 27,232 $    20,833

Operating expenses:

Depreciation and amortization 6,995 5,432 4,013

General and administrative (including $1,317, $1,208,

and $980, respectively, to related party) 5,250 4,140 3,127

Federal excise tax 490 - -

Real estate expenses 270 344 495

Leasehold rent 308 308 119

Total operating expenses 13,313 10,224 7,754

Operating income 20,057 17,008 13,079

Other income and expenses:

Equity in (loss) earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures                                             (3,276) 2,102 2,869

Gain on dispositions of real estate of unconsolidated joint ventures 26,908 - -

Interest and other income  899 314 386

Interest:

Expense                                                                                                             (12,524)                         (9,764)                         (8,175)

Amortization of deferred financing costs                                                                     (595)                            (726)                            (499)

Gain on sale of air rights (2005) and other gains 228 10,248 60

Gain on sale of real estate 185 - 13

Income from continuing operations 31,882 19,182 7,733

Discontinued operations:

Income from operations 883 193 3,241

Net gain on sale 3,660 1,905 -

Income from discontinued operations 4,543 2,098 3,241

Net income $ 36,425 $ 21,280 $ 10,974

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:

Basic 9,931 9,838 9,728

Diluted 9,934 9,843 9,744

Net income per common share – basic and diluted:

Income from continuing operations $          3.21 $        1.95 $          .80

Income from discontinued operations .46 .21 .33

Net income per common share $          3.67 $        2.16 $        1.13

Cash distributions per share of common stock $          1.35 $        1.32 $         1.32

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES

Consolidated Statements of Income
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

82517XLq5:82517XLq5  5/1/07  11:55 AM  Page 5



O N E  L I B E R T Y  P R O P E R T I E S ,  I N C .  A N D  S U B S I D I A R I E S6

Accumulated
Other Accumulated

Preferred Common Paid-in Comprehensive Unearned Undistributed
Stock Stock Capital Income Compensation Net Income Total

Balances, December 31, 2003 $ - $ 9,605 $130,863 $ 823           $ (447)     $ 5,125 $145,969
Distributions - Common Stock

($1.32 per share)                     - - - - -            (12,853)   (12,853)
Exercise of options - 49 543 - - - 592
Shares issued through dividend reinvestment plan - 72 1,247 - - - 1,319
Issuance of restricted stock - - 699 -                 (699) - -
Restricted stock vesting - 2              (2) - - - -
Compensation expense -

restricted stock - - - - 220 - 220
Net income - - - - - 10,974 10,974

Other comprehensive income -
net unrealized loss on available-
for-sale securities - - -             (106) - -         (106)

Comprehensive income - - - - - - 10,868
Balances, December 31, 2004 - 9,728 133,350 717 (926) 3,246 146,115
Distributions - Common Stock

($1.32 per share)                                        - - - -                        -           (12,990)    (12,990)
Exercise of options - 11 109 - - - 120
Shares issued through dividend reinvestment plan - 31 569 - - - 600
Issuance of restricted stock - - 617 -                  (617) - -
Compensation expense -

restricted stock - - - - 293 - 293
Net income - - - - - 21,280 21,280

Other comprehensive income -
net unrealized gain on available-
for-sale securities - - - 101 - - 101

Comprehensive income - - - - - - 21,381
Balances, December 31, 2005 - 9,770 134,645 818             (1,250) 11,536 155,519
Reclassification - upon the adoption of FASB No. 123(R) - -       (1,250) - 1,250 - -
Distributions - Common Stock

($1.35 per share)                                        - - - - -        (13,420)    (13,420)
Exercise of options - 9 101 - - - 110
Shares issued through dividend reinvestment plan - 44 815 - - - 859
Compensation expense -

restricted stock - - 515 - - - 515
Net income - - - - - 36,425 36,425

Other comprehensive income -
net unrealized gain on available-
for-sale securities             - - - 117 - - 117

Comprehensive income - - - - - - 36,542

Balances, December 31, 2006 $ - $ 9,823 $134,826 $  935            $ - $ 34,541 $180,125

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity                           
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) 
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Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 36,425 $ 21,280 $ 10,974
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Gain on sale of real estate, air rights and other (4,181)         (12,152)              (75)
Increase in rental income from straight-lining of rent                                                             (1,763)             (1,311)             (1,037)
(Increase) decrease in rental income from amortization of intangibles relating to leases                   (187) 29 43
Provision for valuation adjustment - 469 366
Amortization of restricted stock expense 515 293 220
Gain on dispositions of real estate related to unconsolidated joint ventures                                 (26,908) - -
Equity in loss (earnings) of unconsolidated joint ventures 3,276          (2,102)             (2,869)
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated joint ventures 24,165 3,108 2,775
Depreciation and amortization 7,091 5,905 4,758
Amortization of financing costs 600 758 503
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in escrow, deposits and other receivables                                                                   (945)            (1,640)                  (848)
Increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities 839 132 891

Net cash provided by operating activities 38,927 14,769 15,701
Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of real estate and improvements                                                                         (79,636)         (59,427)              (49,734)
Net proceeds from sale of real estate, air rights and other 16,228 34,114 1,302
Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures                                                                              (1,553)                   (282)                (13,149)
Distributions of return of capital from unconsolidated joint ventures 21,264 9,084 662
Net proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities 348 5 4
Purchase of available-for-sale securities (1,364) -              -

Net cash used in investing activities                                                                                   (44,713)       (16,506)          (60,915)
Cash flows from financing activities:

(Repayments) proceeds from bank line of credit, net                                                                          -    (7,600)          7,600
Proceeds from mortgages payable 37,564 64,706 12,150
Payment of financing costs                                                                                                   (916)                 (1,172)             (949)
Repayment of mortgages payable                                                                                            (4,070)               (21,253)               (2,368)
Increase in restricted cash                                                                                                       (7,409) - -
Cash distributions - Common stock                                                                                      (13,088)          (12,966)     (13,023)
Exercise of stock options 110 120 592
Issuance of shares through dividend reinvestment plan 859 600 1,319

Net cash provided by financing activities 13,050 22,435 5,321
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 7,264 20,698 (39,893)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 26,749 6,051 45,944
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 34,013 $ 26,749 $ 6,051 

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for interest expense $   12,576 $   10,150 $        8,347
Cash paid during the year for income taxes 16 15 18

Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Assumption of mortgages payable in connection with purchase of real estate $  26,957 $               - $  9,854
Purchase accounting allocations                                                                                                (3,346) 1,655 1,105
Reclassification of 2005 deposit in connection with purchase of real estate 2,525 - -
Additions to real estate included in other liabilities - -                    (1,413)

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
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NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND BACKGROUND

One Liberty Properties, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated in 1982

in the state of Maryland. The Company is a self-administered and self-

managed real estate investment trust (“REIT”). The Company acquires,

owns and manages a geographically diversified portfolio of retail,

including retail furniture stores, industrial, office, health and fitness and

other properties, a substantial portion of which are under long-term net

leases. As of December 31, 2006, the Company owned sixty-five prop-

erties, held a 50% tenancy in common interest in one property and par-

ticipated in seven joint ventures that owned a total of six properties,

including two vacant properties that were held for sale. The seventy-two

properties are located in twenty-eight states.

NOTE 2 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of One

Liberty Properties, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. One Liberty

Properties, Inc. and its subsidiaries are hereinafter referred to as the

Company. Material intercompany items and transactions have been

eliminated.

INVESTMENT IN UNCONSOLIDATED JOINT VENTURES

The Company accounts for its investments in unconsolidated joint ven-

tures under the equity method of accounting as the Company (1) is pri-

marily the managing member but does not exercise substantial operat-

ing control over these entities pursuant to EITF 04-05, and (2) such

entities are not variable-interest entities pursuant to FASB Interpretation

No. 46R, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”. These invest-

ments are recorded initially at cost, as investments in unconsolidated

joint ventures, and subsequently adjusted for equity in earnings and

cash contributions and distributions. Any difference between the carry-

ing amount of these investments on the balance sheet of the Company

and the underlying equity in net assets is amortized as an adjustment to

equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures over 40 years. See

Note 4. None of the joint venture debt is recourse to the Company.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect

the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying

notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Management believes that the estimates and assumptions that are most

important to the portrayal of the Company’s financial condition and

results of operations, in that they require management’s most difficult,

subjective or complex judgments, form the basis of the accounting poli-

cies deemed to be most significant to the Company. These significant

accounting policies relate to revenues and the value of the Company’s

real estate portfolio. Management believes its estimates and assump-

tions related to these significant accounting policies are appropriate

under the circumstances; however, should future events or occurrences

result in unanticipated consequences, there could be a material impact

on the Company’s future financial condition or results of operations.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Rental income includes the base rent that each tenant is required to pay

in accordance with the terms of their respective leases reported on a

straight-line basis over the initial term of the lease. Some of the leases

provide for additional contingent rental revenue in the form of percent-

age rents and increases based on the consumer price index. The per-

centage rents are based upon the level of sales achieved by the lessee

and are recorded once the required sales levels are reached.

Gains or losses on disposition of properties are recorded when the cri-

teria for recognizing such gains or losses under generally accepted

accounting principles have been met.

PURCHASE ACCOUNTING FOR ACQUISITION OF REAL ESTATE 

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.

141, or SFAS 141, “Business Combinations,” the Company allocates the

purchase price of real estate to land and building and intangibles, such

as the value of above, below and at-market leases and origination costs

associated with in-place leases. The Company depreciates the amount

allocated to building and intangible assets or liabilities over their esti-

mated useful lives, which generally range from two to forty years. The

values of the above and below market leases are amortized and record-

ed as either an increase (in the case of below market leases) or a

decrease (in the case of above market leases) to rental income over the

remaining term of the associated lease. The tenant improvements and

origination costs are amortized as an expense over the remaining life of

the lease. The Company assesses fair value of the leases based on esti-

mated cash flow projections that utilize appropriate discount rates and

available market information. With respect to the Company’s acquisition

of a property in December 2006, the fair value of its in-place lease and

other intangibles have been allocated on a preliminary basis and is sub-

ject to change.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
DECEMBER 31, 2006
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As a result of its evaluation under SFAS 141 of the acquisitions made,

the Company recorded additional deferred intangible lease assets of

$2,210,000 and $1,732,000, representing the value of the acquired

above market leases and assumed lease origination costs for the years

ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Company also

recorded additional deferred intangible lease liabilities of $5,556,000

and $77,000, representing the value of the acquired below market leases

for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The

Company recognized a net increase in rental revenue of $187,000 for

the amortization of the above/below market leases for the year ended

2006 and recognized a net reduction in rental revenue of $29,000 for

the amortization of the above/below market leases for the year ended

2005. The Company recognized amortization expense of $233,000 and

$150,000 relating to lease origination costs, resulting from the reallo-

cation of the purchase price of the acquired properties for the years

ended 2006 and 2005, respectively. At December 31, 2006 and 2005,

accumulated amortization of intangible lease assets was $758,000 and

$385,000, respectively. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, accumulated

amortization of intangible lease liabilities was $448,000 and $119,000,

respectively.

The unamortized balance of intangible lease assets at December 31,

2006 will be deducted from future operations through 2025 as follows:

2007 $ 460,000

2008 4 5 4 , 0 0 0

2009 4 4 1 , 0 0 0

2010 4 4 1 , 0 0 0

2011 4 4 1 , 0 0 0

Thereafter 3,016,000

$5,253,000

The unamortized balance of intangible lease liabilities at December 31,

2006 will be added to future operations through 2022 as follows:

2007 $ 438,000

2008 4 0 4 , 0 0 0

2009 4 0 4 , 0 0 0

2010 4 0 4 , 0 0 0

2011 4 0 4 , 0 0 0

Thereafter 3,957,000

$6,011,000

 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with maturities of

three months or less when purchased.

RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted cash consists of a cash deposit as required by a certain loan

payable for collateral. (See Note 5.)

ESCROW, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Includes $815,000 and $883,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005,

respectively, of restricted cash relating to real estate taxes, insurance

and other escrows.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Depreciation of buildings and improvements is computed on the straight-

line method over an estimated useful life of 40 years for commercial

properties and 27 1/2 years for its residential property. Depreciation

ceases when a property is deemed “held for sale”. Leasehold interest is

amortized over the initial lease term of the leasehold position.

Depreciation expense, including amortization of the leasehold position,

amounted to $6,762,000, $5,282,000 and $3,868,000 for the three

years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

LEASEHOLD RENT

Ground lease payments on a leasehold position are computed on the

straight line method.

DEFERRED FINANCING COSTS

Mortgage and credit line costs are deferred and amortized on a straight-

line basis over the terms of the respective debt obligations, which

approximates the effective interest method. At December 31, 2006 and

2005, accumulated amortization of such costs was $1,939,000 and

$1,367,000, respectively.

FEDERAL INCOME TAXES

The Company has qualified as a real estate investment trust under the

applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code. Under these provi-

sions, the Company will not be subject to federal income taxes on

amounts distributed to stockholders providing it distributes substantially

all of its taxable income and meets certain other conditions.

Distributions made during 2006 and 2005 included approximately 0%

and 18%, respectively, to be treated by the stockholders as return of

capital and 67% and 5%, respectively, as capital gain distributions, with

the balance to be treated as ordinary income. 
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INVESTMENT IN EQUITY SECURITIES

The Company determines the appropriate classification of equity secu-

rities at the time of purchase and reassesses the appropriateness of the

classification at each reporting date. At December 31, 2006, all mar-

ketable securities have been classified as available-for-sale and, as a

result, are stated at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on available-

for-sale securities are recorded as accumulated other comprehensive

income in the stockholders’ equity section. 

The Company’s investment in 30,048 common shares of BRT Realty

Trust (“BRT”), a related party of the Company, (accounting for less than

1% of the total voting power of BRT), purchased at a cost of $97,000,

has a fair market value at December 31, 2006 of $831,000. At

December 31, 2006, the total cumulative unrealized gain of $935,000

on all investments in equity securities is reported as accumulated other

comprehensive income in the stockholders’ equity section.

Realized gains and losses are determined using the average cost

method and is included in “Interest and other income” on the income 

statement. During 2006, 2005 and 2004, sales proceeds and gross real-

ized gains and losses on securities classified as available-for-sale were:

2006 2005 2004

Sales proceeds $ 348,000 $ 5,000 $ 4,000

Gross realized losses $ 3,000 $ 1,000 $ -

Gross realized gains $ 111,000 $      - $   2,000

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair

value of each class of financial instruments:

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: The carrying amounts reported in

the balance sheet for these instruments approximate their fair values.

RESTRICTED CASH:  The carrying amount reported in the balance

sheet for this instrument approximates its fair value.

INVESTMENT IN EQUITY SECURITIES:  Since these investments

are considered “available-for-sale”, they are reported in the balance

sheet based upon quoted market prices.

MORTGAGES AND LOAN PAYABLE:  At December 31, 2006, the

estimated fair value of the Company’s mortgages and loan payable

exceeded their carrying value by approximately $1,880,000, assuming

a market interest rate of 6.25%.

Considerable judgment is necessary to interpret market data and devel-

op estimated fair value.  The use of different market assumptions and/or

estimation methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated

fair value amounts. 

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Company maintains accounts at various financial institutions. While

the Company attempts to limit any financial exposure, its deposit bal-

ances may, at times, exceed federally insured limits. The Company has

not experienced any losses on such accounts.

While the Company’s properties are located in twenty-eight states, 17.9%,

17.6% and 22.8% of the Company’s rental revenues were attributable

to properties located in Texas and 17.2%, 20.2% and 25.6% of the

Company’s rental revenues were attributable to properties located in New

York for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respective-

ly. No other state contributed over 10% to the Company’s rental revenues.

On April 7, 2006, the Company acquired eleven retail furniture stores,

located in six states, net leased to a single tenant pursuant to a master

lease. The basic term of the net lease expires August 14, 2022, with sev-

eral renewal options. For the year ended December 31, 2006, these prop-

erties generated rental revenues of $3,559,000, or 10.7% of the Company’s

total revenues. No tenant contributed over 10% of the Company’s rental

revenues for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004.

EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

Basic earnings per share was determined by dividing net income appli-

cable to common stockholders for each year by the weighted average

number of shares of Common Stock outstanding during each year.

Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that could

occur if securities or other contracts exercisable for or convertible into

Common Stock were exercised or converted or resulted in the issuance

of Common Stock that then shared in the earnings of the Company.

Diluted earnings per share was determined by dividing net income

applicable to common stockholders for each year by the total of the

weighted average number of shares of Common Stock outstanding plus

the dilutive effect of the Company’s outstanding options (2,315, 4,738

and 16,288 shares for the years ended 2006, 2005 and 2004, respec-

tively) using the treasury stock method.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements |CONTINUED

DECEMBER 31, 2006
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ACCOUNTING FOR LONG-LIVED ASSETS AND IMPAIRMENT OF

REAL ESTATE OWNED

The Company reviews each real estate asset owned for which indicators

of impairment are present to determine whether the carrying amount of

the asset will be recovered. Recognition of impairment is required if the

aggregate future undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by

those assets are less than the assets’ carrying amount. Measurement is

based upon the fair market value of the asset determined by applying

the appropriate capitalization rate in the area in which the property is

located, and applying such capitalization rate to the net operating

income derived from that asset. Real estate assets that are expected to

be disposed of are valued at the lower of carrying amount or fair value

less costs to sell on an individual asset basis.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company determined

that the estimated fair value of a retail property, where the tenant filed

for bankruptcy protection and vacated the premises, was lower than its

carrying value and recorded a $366,000 provision for the difference. At

June 30, 2005, the Company wrote down the asset by an additional

$469,000 based on an updated evaluation of market conditions in the

geographic area in which the property is located. The provisions were

recorded as direct write-downs of the investment on the balance sheet

and depreciation was calculated using the new basis. The Company

sold this property in December 2005 and recognized a loss of $9,000.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, one of the Company’s joint

ventures determined that the fair value of one of the five properties

owned by it was lower than its carrying value and recorded a provision

for valuation adjustment of $2,562,000, of which the Company’s share

was $1,281,000. During the year ended December 31, 2006, the joint

venture wrote down the property by an additional $600,000 based on

an updated evaluation of market conditions in the geographic area in

which the property is located, of which the Company’s share was

$300,000. The provisions were recorded as direct write downs on the

balance sheet of the joint venture.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, another of the Company’s

joint ventures determined that the fair value of a vacant property owned

by it was lower than its carrying value and recorded a provision for val-

uation adjustment of $960,000, of which the Company’s share was

$480,000. The provision was based on an evaluation of market condi-

tions in the area in which the property is located. The provision was

recorded as a direct write down on the balance sheet of the joint venture.

In accordance with FIN 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset

Retirement Obligations”, the Company records a conditional asset

retirement obligation (“CARO”) if the liability can be reasonable estimat-

ed. A CARO is an obligation that is settled at the time the asset is retired

or disposed of and for which the timing and/or method of settlement are

conditional on future events. The Company currently does not have any

known conditions that would require remediation.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Virtually all of the Company’s real estate assets are comprised of real

estate owned that is net leased to tenants on a long-term basis. Therefore,

the Company operates predominantly in one industry segment.

CONSOLIDATION OF VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)

issued Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities,” which explains how to identify variable interest entities (“VIE”)

and how to assess whether to consolidate such entities. In December

2003, a revision was issued (46R) to clarify some of the original provi-

sions. Management has reviewed its unconsolidated joint ventures and

determined that none represent variable interest entities which would

require consolidation by the Company pursuant to the interpretation.

SHARE BASED COMPENSATION

The Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123R, “Share-Based Payments,”

effective January 1, 2006. SFAS No. 123R established financial

accounting and reporting standards for stock-based employee compen-

sation plans, including all arrangements by which employees receive

shares of stock or other equity instruments of the employer, or the

employer incurs liabilities to employees in amounts based on the price

of the employer’s stock. The statement also defined a fair value based

method of accounting for an employee stock option or similar equity

instrument whereby the fair-value is recorded based on the market

value of the common stock on the grant date and is amortized to gen-

eral and administrative expense over the respective vesting periods.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for

Uncertainty in Income Taxes” (“FIN 48”). This interpretation, among

other things, creates a two step approach for evaluating uncertain tax

positions. Recognition (step one) occurs when an enterprise concludes

that a tax position, based solely on its technical merits, is more-likely-

than-not to be sustained upon examination. Measurement (step two)

determines the amount of benefit that more-likely-than-not will be real-
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ized upon settlement. Derecognition of a tax position that was previous-

ly recognized would occur when a company subsequently determines

that a tax position no longer meets the more-likely-than-not threshold

of being sustained. FIN 48 specifically prohibits the use of a valuation

allowance as a substitute for derecognition of tax positions, and it has

expanded disclosure requirements. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years

beginning after December 15, 2006, in which the impact of adoption

should be accounted for as a cumulative-effect adjustment to the begin-

ning balance of retained earnings. The Company is evaluating FIN 48

and has not yet determined the impact the adoption will have on the

consolidated financial statements, but it is not expected to be significant. 

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 157, “Fair Value

Measurements” (“SFAS No. 157”). SFAS No. 157 provides guidance for

using fair value to measure assets and liabilities. This statement clari-

fies the principle that fair value should be based on the assumptions

that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability.

SFAS No.157 establishes a fair value hierarchy, giving the highest prior-

ity to quoted prices in active markets and the lowest priority to unob-

servable data. SFAS No. 157 applies whenever other standards require

assets or liabilities to be measured at fair value. This statement is effec-

tive in fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company is

evaluating SFAS No. 157 and has not yet determined the impact the

adoption will have on the consolidated financial statements, but it is not

expected to be significant.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued

Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108 (“SAB 108”), which became effective

for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006. SAB 108 provides guid-

ance on the consideration of the effects of prior period misstatements

in quantifying current year misstatements for the purpose of a materi-

ality assessment. SAB 108 provides for the quantification of the impact

of correcting all misstatements, including both the carryover and

reversing effects of prior year misstatements, on the current year finan-

cial statements. If a misstatement is material to the current year finan-

cial statements, the prior year financial statements should also be cor-

rected, even though such revision was, and continues to be, immateri-

al to the prior year financial statements. Correcting prior year financial

statements for immaterial errors would not require previously filed

reports to be amended. Such correction should be made in the current

period filings. The adoption of SAB No. 108 did not have a material

effect on the consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 159, “The Fair Value
Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” (“SFAS No. 159”)

SFAS No. 159 provides companies with an option to report selected

financial assets and liabilities at fair value. The Standard’s objective is to

reduce both complexity in accounting for financial instruments and the

volatility in earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities

differently. The FASB believes that SFAS No. 159 helps to mitigate this

type of accounting-induced volatility by enabling companies to report

related assets and liabilities at fair value, which would likely reduce the

need for companies to comply with detailed rules for hedge accounting.

SFAS No. 159 also establishes presentation and disclosure requirements

designed to facilitate comparisons between companies that choose dif-

ferent measurement attributes for similar types of assets and liabilities.

SFAS No. 159 is effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year

beginning after November 15, 2007. Early adoption is permitted as of

the beginning of the previous fiscal year provided that the entity makes

that choice in the first 120 days of that fiscal year and also elects to apply

the provisions of SFAS No. 157. The Company is evaluating SFAS No.

159 and has not yet determined the impact the adoption will have on the

consolidated financial statements, but it is not expected to be significant.

RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts reported in previous financial statements have been

reclassified in the accompanying financial statements to conform to the 

current year’s presentation primarily to present discontinued operations

for the sale of a property in 2006.

NOTE 3 – REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS AND 
MINIMUM FUTURE RENTALS

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company purchased

twenty-two single tenant properties in eleven states for a total consid-

eration of $111,872,000.

The rental properties owned at December 31, 2006 are leased under

noncancellable operating leases to corporate tenants with current expi-

rations ranging from 2007 to 2038, with certain tenant renewal rights.

Virtually all of the lease agreements are net lease arrangements which

require the tenant to pay not only rent but all the expenses of the leased

property including maintenance, taxes, utilities and insurance. Certain

lease agreements provide for periodic rental increases and others pro-

vide for increases based on the consumer price index.

The minimum future rentals to be received over the next five years and

thereafter on the operating leases in effect at December 31, 2006 are 

as follows:

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements |CONTINUED

DECEMBER 31, 2006
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Year Ending December 31, (In Thousands)

2007 $ 36,092

2008 3 5 , 9 4 4

2009 3 4 , 9 5 1

2010 3 5 , 2 3 9

2011 3 4 , 0 6 5

Thereafter 260,525

Total $ 436,816

Included in the minimum future rentals are rentals from a property

owned in fee (ground lease) by an unrelated third party. The Company

pays annual fixed leasehold rent of $237,500 through July 2009 with

25% increases every five years through March 3, 2020 and has a 

right to extend the lease for up to five 5-year and one seven month 

renewal options.

At December 31, 2006, the Company has recorded an unbilled rent

receivable aggregating $8,218,000, representing rent reported on a

straight-line basis in excess of rental payments required under the ini-

tial term of the respective leases. This amount is to be billed and

received pursuant to the lease terms during the next nineteen years. The

minimum future rentals presented above include amounts applicable to

the repayment of these unbilled rent receivables.

SALES OF AIR RIGHTS, OTHER AND REAL ESTATE

During July 2006, the Company sold excess acreage to an unrelated

third party for a sales price of $975,000 and realized a gain of $185,000.

During February 2006, the Company sold an option it owned to buy an

interest in certain property adjacent to one of the Company’s properties

and realized a gain of $228,000.

In June 2005, the Company sold the unused development or “air” rights

relating to a property located in Brooklyn, New York for a sales price of

approximately $11,000,000, which resulted in a gain after closing costs

of $10,248,000 for financial statement purposes. This gain has been

deferred for federal tax purposes in accordance with Section 1031 of

the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. (See Note 8 for the

related party fee paid as a result of this sale).

In August 2004, the Company realized a gain of $60,000 resulting from

its grant of an underground easement to a power company at one of its

properties. In July 2004, the Company sold a retail property, which had

been vacant since February 2003, for a sales price of $1,340,000 and

realized a gain of $13,000. The net operating loss for the property was

$74,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004.

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA INFORMATION

On April 7, 2006, the Company acquired eleven retail furniture stores,

located in six states, leased to a single tenant pursuant to a master

lease. The properties were acquired for a purchase price, before closing

costs, of approximately $51,200,000, with approximately $22,250,000

paid in cash, $2,000,000 borrowed under the Company’s line of credit

and the remainder through the assumption of a mortgage of approxi-

mately $26,957,000. The basic term of the net lease expires August 14,

2022, with several renewal options. As a result of its evaluation of this

acquisition under SFAS 141 and 142, the Company recorded a deferred

asset of $843,000, representing assumed lease origination costs and it

also recorded a deferred liability of $5,112,000 representing the net

value of the acquired below market lease. These deferred amounts will

be written off over the initial lease term and the Company will recognize

additional rental income from the amortization of the deferred liability

and additional amortization expense relating to the amortization of the

deferred lease origination costs.

On December 20, 2006, the Company acquired an industrial property

located in Baltimore, Maryland, leased to a single tenant. The property

was acquired for a purchase price of approximately $32,200,000, with

approximately $9,200,000 paid in cash and the remainder through a

mortgage of approximately $23,000,000. The basic term of the net

lease expires March 2022, with several renewal options. As a result of

its preliminary evaluation under SFAS 141 and 142 of this acquisition,

the Company recorded a deferred asset of $461,000, representing

assumed lease origination costs and it also recorded a deferred liability

of $110,000 representing the net value of the acquired below market

lease. These deferred amounts will be written off over the initial lease

term and the Company will recognize additional rental income from the

amortization of the deferred liability and additional amortization

expense relating to the amortization of the deferred lease origination

costs.  Payments to be received under an agreement entered into with

the seller of the property, since the property was not producing ade-

quate rent at the time of the acquisition, will be recorded as a reduction

to building and improvements rather than rental income in accordance

with Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue 85-27, “Recognition of

Receipts from Made-Up Rental Shortfalls”.

The following table summarizes, on an unaudited pro forma basis, the

combined results of continuing operations of the Company for the years

ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 as though the acquisitions of these

properties in 2006 were completed on January 1, 2005. The informa-

tion does not purport to be indicative of what the operating results of
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the Company would have been had the acquisitions been consummat-

ed on January 1, 2005. Results of operations acquired are included in

the consolidated statements of income from the date of acquisition.

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data.)

2006 2005

Pro forma revenues $ 35,888 $ 33,724

Pro forma income from 

continuing operations 31,298 20,020

Pro forma common shares:

Basic 9,931 9,838

Diluted 9,934 9,843

Pro forma income from 

continuing operations

Basic $ 3.15 $ 2.04

Diluted $ 3.15 $ 2.03

NOTE 4 – INVESTMENT IN UNCONSOLIDATED 
JOINT VENTURES 

The Company is a member in seven unconsolidated joint ventures

which own and operate six properties as of December 31, 2006.

Summaries of the two most significant joint ventures in which the

Company was designated the managing member are below.

At December 31, 2006, the Company owns a 50% equity interest in two

joint ventures with MTC Investors LLC (“MTC”), an unrelated entity.

Approval of both members of these two joint ventures is needed for all

material decisions including property acquisitions, financing and trans-

fer of interest. During the year ended December 31, 2006, the first joint

venture (Joint Venture #1) sold five megaplex stadium-style movie the-

aters and the second joint venture (Joint Venture #2) sold one partial

stadium-style movie theater located in Brooklyn, NY and three

megaplex stadium-style movie theaters. The remaining real estate

asset, owned by Joint Venture #2, is a vacant parcel of land located in

Monroe, NY, that was sold on March 14, 2007.

The following tables present condensed financial statements for the two

movie theater joint ventures at December 31, 2006 and for the year then 

ended. All such operations were discontinued as a result of property 

sales during 2006 and the remaining asset is considered held for sale.

(Amounts in thousands):

Condensed Joint Joint
Balance Sheets Venture #1 Venture #2
Cash and cash equivalents $ 77 $ 354
Property held for sale -                      40(A)

Other assets, including 
investment in
Access Integrated 
Technologies, Inc.
Class A common stock -                   429(B)

Total assets $ 77 $ 823
Other liabilities $       90 $       228
Equity                                               (13) 595
Total liabilities and equity $ 77 $ 823
Company’s equity investment       $ (7) $   291

Condensed Statements Joint Joint
of Operations Venture #1 Venture #2
Rental income $ 5,572 $ 3,596
Depreciation and amortization 481 337
Operating expenses(C) 388 124
Provision for valuation 

adjustment of real estate -                         600(A)

Total operating expenses 869 1,061
Operating income 4,703 2,535
Other income and expenses:

Interest income - 9
Interest:

Expense                                       (1,866)                    (1,448)
Mortgage prepayment 

premium and fees (D) (4,942)                   (5,596)
Amortization of deferred

financing costs                       (52)                (24)
Gain on sale of properties (D) 35,167 20,498
Gain on sale of AIXD stock -                       166(B)

Net income attributable 
to members $   33,010 $   16,140

Company’s share of 
net income $ 16,505 $     8,070

Amount recorded in 
income statement:

From operations $    (1,099)            $     (2,179)
From gain on sale of properties 16,659(E) 10,249

$    15,560 $   8,070
Distributions received by 

the Company:
From operations $ 15,560 $ 8,106
From capital  $ 12,724 $   7,236

(A) The remaining real estate is a vacant parcel of land located in Monroe, NY, that was
sold on March 14, 2007 for a consideration of approximately $1,250. This property has a
nominal book value after provisions for valuation adjustment of $600 and $2,562 taken as
direct write downs on the balance sheet during the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements |CONTINUED
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(B) The joint venture owned 40,000 restricted shares of Class A common stock of Access
Integrated Technologies, Inc. (NASDAQ:AIXD), the parent company of a former tenant
of the joint venture. In April 2006, the joint venture sold 20,000 shares of the AIXD
stock and realized a gain on sale of $166. The closing price per share of AIXD at
December 31, 2006 was $8.72.

(C) Includes management fees of $52 and $33, respectively, paid to Majestic Property
Management Corp. (“Majestic”), a company wholly owned by the Chairman of the
Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer and in which certain executive officers
of the Company are officers and from which such officers receive compensation. The
management fee is equal to 1% of rent paid by the tenants. In addition, Majestic was
paid a fee of $8 for supervision of improvements to a property.

(D) On October 5, 2006, the joint ventures sold eight of their movie theater properties to 
a single unrelated purchaser for an aggregate sales price of $136,658 and realized a
gain, for book purposes, after expenses, fees and brokerage commissions, of $49,077.
The joint ventures paid a prepayment premium of $9,707 on the outstanding mortgage
loans secured by the properties which were sold. In connection with this sale, a 
brokerage commission totaling $1,277 was paid to Majestic. In addition, the joint 
ventures paid an aggregate bonus of $90 to two other officers of the Company 
(neither of whom are officers of Majestic) for their efforts in connection with this sale.

On September 13, 2006, Joint Venture #2 sold a movie theater property located in
Brooklyn, New York to an unrelated party for a consideration of $16,000 and realized 
a gain of $6,588. The joint venture paid a premium of $831 in connection with the 
prepayment of the mortgage loan secured by this property.

(E) The difference between the carrying amount of the Company’s investment in the joint
venture and the underlying equity in net assets was a premium amortized as an 
adjustment to equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures over 40 years. The
unamortized premium balance was approximately $924 at October 5, 2006 when the
real estate assets of the joint venture were sold and thus, such balance was offset
against gain on disposition of real estate related to unconsolidated ventures.

The following tables present condensed financial statements for the two

movie theater joint ventures at December 31, 2005 and for the year then

ended. All such operations were discontinued as a result of property

sales during 2006 and the remaining asset is considered held for sale.

(Amounts in thousands):

Condensed Joint Joint
Balance Sheets Venture #1 Venture #2
Cash and cash equivalents $ 368 $ 927
Real estate investments, net 53,384 37,989
Property held for sale - 640(A)

Deferred financing costs 458 419
Unbilled rent receivable 1,390 1,136
Other assets, primarily

investment in Access  
Integrated Technologies, Inc.
Class A common stock 3 432(B)

Total assets $ 55,603 $ 41,543
Mortgage loans payable $ 31,720 $ 25,514
Other liabilities 337 559
Equity 23,546 15,470
Total liabilities and equity $ 55,603 $ 41,543
Company’s equity investment      $ 12,706 (C) $ 7,632

Condensed Statements Joint Joint
of Operations Venture #1 Venture #2
Rental income $ 7,351 $ 5,415
Depreciation and amortization 1,154 810
Operating expenses(D) 301 130
Total operating expenses 1,455 940
Operating income 5,896 4,475
Other income and expenses:

Interest and other income 3 -
Interest:

Expense                                     (2,515)                   (1,989)
Amortization of deferred

financing costs                        (70)                   (32)
Income from 

continuing operations 3,314 2,454
Loss from 

discontinued operations -          (2,583)(A)

Net income (loss) attributable 
to members $ 3,314                $    (129)

Company’s share of 
net income (loss) $ 1,657              $   (65)
Amount recorded in 

income statement                  $    1,637(C) $   (65)
Distributions received by the Company:

From operations $ 1,645 $    840
From capital  $    39 $   235

(A) During the year ended December 31, 2005, the joint venture determined that the fair
value of one of the five properties owned by it, where the joint venture was funding 
the construction of a six screen movie theater, located in Monroe, NY, pursuant to the
lease entered into with the former tenant, was lower than its carrying value. The lease
with the former tenant was terminated by mutual agreement in September 2004 and
construction was suspended. The joint venture was seeking alternative uses for this
property and also offered this property for sale. Included in loss from discontinued
operations is a provision for valuation adjustment of $2,562 which is based on a 
third party appraisal which values the land only and  a report  by an  independent 
engineering firm which estimates the value of the construction completed to date,
against which management has taken a significant discount. The provision was record-
ed as a direct write down on the balance sheet.

{B) During February 2005, the tenant/operator of one of the joint venture’s movie theaters,
located in Brooklyn, NY, who had the same principal as the tenant described in (A)
above, sold its business to an independent third party. In consideration of the joint
venture’s consent to the lease assignment and a lease amendment and its waiver of the
requirement for a security deposit under the amended lease, the joint venture received
40,000 restricted shares of Class A common stock of Access Integrated Technologies,
Inc., the new tenant’s parent company (NASDAQ:AIXD). The closing price per share on
the date of the transaction for these shares was $4.40 and at December 31, 2005 was
$10.38. These shares have certain restrictions regarding 
the disposition thereof.

(C) The difference between the carrying amount of the Company’s investment in the 
joint venture and the underlying equity in net assets is a premium amortized as an
adjustment to equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures over 40 years. 

(D) Includes management fees of $68 and $51, respectively, paid to Majestic. The 
management fee is equal to 1% of rent paid by the tenants.

The remaining five unconsolidated joint ventures each own one property.

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company’s equity investment in

these five joint ventures totaled $6,730,000 and $6,997,000, respectively.
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The December 31, 2006 balance is net of distributions, including distri-

butions received in 2006 of $1,823,000 received from these five joint

ventures, including a $1,061,000 distribution of financing proceeds the

Company received from one of its joint ventures. These five unconsoli-

dated joint ventures contributed $2,000 and $530,000 in equity earnings

for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The

$2,000 equity in earnings for the year ended December 31, 2006 is net

of a $960,000 provision for valuation adjustment, of which the

Company’s share is $480,000, recorded by the joint venture against its

vacant property. The joint venture had determined that the fair value of

this vacant property was lower than its carrying value based on an eval-

uation of market conditions in the area in which the property is located.

Mortgage brokerage fees relating to financings of two joint venture

properties in 2005 aggregating $156,000, were paid by the two ven-

tures to Majestic. These fees were deferred and are being amortized

over the life of the respective mortgages. In addition, one of these joint

ventures paid Majestic $12,000 in management fees for each of the

years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005.

NOTE 5 – DEBT OBLIGATIONS

MORTGAGES PAYABLE

At December 31, 2006, there are thirty-six outstanding mortgages

payable, all of which are secured by first liens on individual real estate

investments with an aggregate carrying value before accumulated

depreciation, as adjusted for intangibles, of $351,811,000. The mort-

gages bear interest at rates ranging from 5.13% to 8.8%, and mature

between 2007 and 2037. The weighted average interest rate was 6.4%

for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Scheduled principal repayments during the next five years and there-

after are as follows:

Year Ending December 31, (In Thousands)
2007 $ 4,573
2008 12,788
2009 9,834
2010 22,090
2011 8,353
Thereafter 163,638
Total $ 221,276

LOAN PAYABLE

At December 31, 2006, there is one outstanding loan payable with a bal-

ance of $6,647,000, which is collateralized by cash held in escrow and

shown on the balance sheet as restricted cash. The loan bears interest

at a rate of 6.25% and matures December 1, 2018. The loan was origi-

nally a mortgage collateralized by a movie theater property the

Company owned in California. During 2006, the property was sold and

cash was substituted for collateral at 110% of the principal balance at

the date of sale. The mortgagee will place the loan on a suitable replace-

ment property for a 2% fee on the then principal balance. The Company

still retains the right to prepay the loan and pay the normal prepayment

penalty but has determined not to do so at this time.

Scheduled principal repayments during the next five years and there-

after are as follows:

Year Ending December 31, (In Thousands)
2007 $ 144
2008 154
2009 164
2010 174
2011 185
Thereafter 5,826
Total $ 6,647

LINE OF CREDIT

The Company has a $62,500,000 revolving credit facility (“Facility”)

with VNB New York Corp. (formerly Valley National Bank), Bank Leumi

USA, Israel Discount Bank of New York and Manufacturers and Traders

Trust Company. The Facility matures on March 31, 2007 and provides

that the Company pay interest at the lower of LIBOR plus 2.5% or at the

bank’s prime rate on funds borrowed and an unused facility fee of 1/4%.

The Company paid $636,000 in fees and closing costs relating to the

Facility increase which are being amortized over the term of the Facility.

The Company is in the process of amending its existing revolving cred-

it facility which will extend its maturity date from March 31, 2007 to

March 31, 2010 and reduce the interest rate to the lower of LIBOR plus

2.15% or at the bank’s prime rate on funds borrowed. In connection

with the amendment, the Company will pay a commitment fee and other

expenses totaling approximately $650,000, and substantially all materi-

al covenants will remain the same.

The Facility is guaranteed by all of the Company’s subsidiaries which

own unencumbered properties and the shares of stock of all other sub-

sidiaries are pledged as collateral. The Company has agreed that it and

its affiliates (including entities that are participants in a Shared Services

Agreement – see Note 8) will maintain on deposit with the banks at least

10% of the average outstanding annual principal balance under the

Facility. If minimum balances are not maintained by the Company and

its affiliates, a deficiency fee will be charged to the Company.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements |CONTINUED
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The Facility is available to finance the acquisition or financing of inter-

ests in commercial real estate. The Company is required to comply with

certain covenants. Net proceeds received from the sale or refinance of

properties are required to be used to repay amounts outstanding 

under the Facility if proceeds from the Facility were used to purchase 

the property.

NOTE 6 – PREFERRED STOCK

At the Company’s Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on June 14,

2005, the stockholders approved an Amendment to the Company’s

Restated Articles of Incorporation to increase the aggregate number of

shares of authorized capital stock by authorizing the issuance of

12,500,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $1.00 per share. To

date, none have been issued.

NOTE 7 – PUBLIC OFFERING

A shelf registration statement, which was declared effective by the U.S.

Securities and Exchange Commission on October 2, 2003, allows the

Company to sell common stock from time to time in one or more pub-

lic offerings (at prices and terms to be determined at the time of the

offering) up to an aggregate public offering price of $200,000,000.

Approximately $132,000,000 remains available for issuance under the

shelf registration statement.

NOTE 8 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, Gould Investors L.P. (“Gould”), a

related party, owned 830,911 and 818,679 shares of the common stock

of the Company or approximately 8% of the equity interest. During

2006, Gould purchased 12,232 shares of the Company through the

Company’s dividend reinvestment plan.

The Company reimbursed Gould for allocated expenses and paid fees to

companies wholly owned by the Chairman of the Board of Directors and

Chief Executive Officer and in which certain executive officers of the

Company are officers and from which such officers receive compensa-

tion (“Majestic Entities”). The Company’s policy is to receive terms in

transactions with affiliates that are at least as favorable to the Company

as similar transactions the Company would enter into with unaffiliated

persons. Such fees and costs paid directly by the Company are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Allocated expenses(A) $1,317,000 $1,208,000 $ 980,000

Mortgage brokerage fees(B) 100,000 543,000 122,000

Sales commissions (C) 152,000 404,000 47,000

Management fees(D) 15,000 42,000 58,000

Supervisory fees(E) 41,000 37,000 26,000
Total fees $1,625,000 $2,234,000 $1,233,000

The Company’s unconsolidated joint ventures paid the following fees to

Majestic Property Management Corp. (“Majestic”), one of the Majestic

Entities. Such amounts represent 100% of the fees paid by the joint

ventures, of which the Company’s share is 50%:

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Mortgage brokerage fees(F) $             - $ 156,000 $ -

Sales commissions (G) 1,277,000 - -

Management fees(H) 97,000 131,000 108,000

Supervisory fees(I) 8,000 - -
Total fees $1,382,000 $  287,000 $  108,000

(A) The Company reimbursed Gould for allocated general and administrative expenses and
payroll based on estimated time incurred by various employees pursuant to a Shared
Services Agreement. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, $241,000 and $268,000 remain
unpaid and is reflected in accrued expenses on the balance sheet. This does not
include payments under a direct lease, effective July 2005, with a subsidiary of Gould,
for approximately 1,200 square feet, expiring in 2011, at an annual rent of $40,000,
increasing 3% per year.

(B) Fees paid to Majestic relating to mortgages placed on nine, eleven and three of the
Company’s properties for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,respec-
tively, for mortgages in the aggregate amounts of $12,900,000, $57,706,000 and
$13,976,000. Except for two of the mortgages, where the fees were .5% and .8% of the
principal balance, all fees were 1% of the principal balances of the mortgages. These
fees were deferred and are being amortized over the life of the respective mortgages.

(C) Fees paid to Majestic Entities relating to the sales of one property, two properties and
air rights, and one property for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, for aggregate sales prices of $15,227,000, $30,524,000 and $1,340,000,
respectively. Such fees were based on 1% of the sales price in 2006, 1% to 2% of the
sales price in 2005 and 3.5% of the sales price in 2004.

(D) Fees paid to Majestic relating to management of one, two and two of the Company’s
properties for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 
Such fees were based on 2% to 4% of rent collections.

(E) Fees paid to Majestic for supervision of improvements to properties. Such fees are
generally based on 8% of the cost of the improvements.

(F) Fees paid to Majestic relating to mortgages placed on two joint venture properties 
for mortgages in the aggregate amount of $17,500,000. These fees, ranging from 
.8% to 1% of the principal balance of the mortgages, were deferred and are being 
amortized over the life of the respective mortgages.

(G) Fee paid to Majestic relating to the sale by two of the Company’s joint ventures of
eight movie theater properties at approximately 1% of the aggregate sales price. 

(H) Fees paid to Majestic for the management of ten joint venture properties at 1% 
of rent collections.

(I) Fee paid to Majestic for supervision of improvements to a property at 8% of the cost of
the improvements.
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2006 Acquisitions

Not Part of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

| R E TA I L  FA C I L I T Y
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RETAIL

HEALTH AND FITNESS

MOVIE THEATER

FLEX
(Office/Mixed Use)

INDUSTRIAL

OFFICE

(1)  Real estate investments include cost of land, buildings and
improvements less accumulated depreciation plus investment in
unconsolidated joint ventures at equity.

RESIDENTIAL

| R E TA I L  FA C I L I T Y

Locations
of Properties

Industry Allocation of
Real Estate Investments (1)

(AS OF DECEMBER 2006) 

82517XLq5:82517XLq5  5/1/07  11:56 AM  Page 19



O N E  L I B E R T Y  P R O P E R T I E S ,  I N C .  A N D  S U B S I D I A R I E S20

See Note 4 for further information regarding the Company’s unconsoli-

dated joint ventures.

NEW COMPENSATION AND SERVICES AGREEMENT

Effective as of January 1, 2007, the Company entered into a compensa-

tion and services agreement with Majestic Property Management Corp.,

a company wholly-owned by our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

and in which certain of the Company’s executive officers are officers

and from which they receive compensation. Under the terms of the

agreement, Majestic assumed the Company’s obligations to make pay-

ments to Gould (and other affiliated entities) under the shared services

agreement and agreed to provide to the Company the services of all

affiliated executive, administrative, legal, accounting and clerical per-

sonnel that the Company has heretofore utilized on a part-time (as

needed) basis and for which the Company had paid, as a reimburse-

ment, an allocated portion of the payroll expenses of such personnel in

accordance with the shared services agreement. Since Majestic and its

affiliates will arrange for such personnel for the Company, it will no

longer incur any allocated payroll expenses. Under the terms of the

agreement, Majestic (or its affiliates) will continue to provide to the

Company certain property management services, property acquisition,

sales and leasing services and mortgage brokerage services that it has

provided to the Company in the past, and the Company will not incur

any fees or expenses for such services except for the annual fees

described below. As consideration for providing to the Company the

services of such personnel and property management services (includ-

ing construction supervisory services), property acquisition, sales and

leasing counseling services and mortgage brokerage services, the

Company will pay Majestic an annual fee of $2,125,000 in 2007, in

equal monthly installments. Majestic will credit against the fee payments

due to it under the agreement any management or other fees received

by it from any joint venture in which the Company is a joint venture part-

ner (exclusive of fees paid by the tenant in common on a property located

in Los Angeles, California). In addition, the agreement calls for the Company

to pay compensation to the Company’s Chairman of $250,000 per annum,

an increase from $50,000. The Company also agreed to make an addi-

tional payment to Majestic of $175,000 in 2007 for the Company’s share

of all direct office expenses, such as rent, telephone, postage, computer

services, internet usage, etc., previously allocated to the Company under

the shared services agreement. The annual payments the Company

makes to Majestic will be negotiated each year by the Company and

Majestic, and will be approved by the Company’s Audit Committee and

the Company’s independent directors. The annual payments will be based

upon the prior years’ experience and a budget prepared by Majestic.

NOTE 9 – STOCK OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED STOCK

STOCK OPTIONS

On December 6, 1996, the directors of the Company adopted the 1996

Stock Option Plan (Incentive/Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan), which

was approved by the Company’s stockholders in June 1997. The

options granted under the Plan were granted at per share amounts at

least equal to their fair market value at the date of grant, were cumula-

tively exercisable at a rate of 25% per annum, commencing six months

after the date of grant, and expired five years after the date of grant. A

maximum of 225,000 shares of common stock of the Company were

reserved for issuance to employees, officers, directors, consultants and

advisors to the Company, of which none are available for grant at

December 31, 2006.

Changes in the number of common shares under all option arrange-

ments are summarized as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Outstanding 
at beginning 
of period 9,000 19,500 68,688

Exercised               (9,000)      (10,500)           (49,188)
Outstanding 

at end of period - 9,000 19,500
Exercisable at 

end of period - 9,000 19,500
Option price 

per share 
outstanding     - $  12.19 $11.125-$12.19

Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per share is

required by FASB No. 123, and has been determined as if the Company

had accounted for its employee stock options under the fair value

method. The fair value for the outstanding options was estimated at the

date of the grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the

following weighted-average assumptions for these options which were

granted in 2001: risk free interest rate of 4.06%, dividend yield of 10.07%,

volatility factor of the expected market price of the Company’s Common

Stock based on historical results of .141; and expected life of 5 years.

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in

estimating the fair value of traded options which have no vesting

restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation mod-

els require the input of highly subjective assumptions including expect-

ed stock price volatility.  Because the Company’s employee stock

options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements |CONTINUED
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options, and changes in the subjective input assumptions can material-

ly affect the fair value estimate, management believes the existing mod-

els do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value

of its employee stock options. The Company has elected not to present

pro forma information for 2006, 2005 and 2004 because the impact on

the reported net income and earnings per share is immaterial.

RESTRICTED STOCK

The Company’s 2003 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Incentive Plan”),

approved by the Company’s stockholders in June 2003, provides for the

granting of restricted shares. The maximum number of shares of the

Company’s common stock that may be issued pursuant to the Incentive

Plan is 275,000. The restricted stock grants are valued at the fair value

as of the date of the grant and specify vesting upon the fifth anniversary

of the date of grant and under certain circumstances may vest earlier.

For accounting purposes, the restricted stock is not included in the out-

standing shares shown on the balance sheet until they vest. The value

of such grants are initially deferred, and amortization of amounts deferred

is being charged to operations over the respective vesting periods.

2006 2005 2004

Restricted share grants 50,050 40,750 35,700

Average per share 

grant price $ 20.66 $ 19.05 $    19.58

Recorded as deferred 

compensation $1,034,000 $ 776,000 $ 699,000

Total charge to operations $ 515,000 $ 293,000 $   220,000

Non-vested shares:

Non-vested beginning 

of period 92,725 60,300 26,350

Grants 50,050 40,750 35,700

Vested during period - -         (1,750)

Forfeitures                           (2,600) (8,325) -

Non-vested end of period 140,175 92,725 60,300

Through December 31, 2006, a total of approximately 142,000 shares

were issued and approximately 133,000 shares remain available for

grant pursuant to the Incentive Plan, and approximately $1,750,000

remains as deferred compensation and will be charged to expense over

the remaining weighted average vesting period of approximately 3.1

years. On February 28, 2007, 51,225 shares were issued as restricted

share grants having an aggregate value of approximately $1,255,000.

NOTE 10 – DISTRIBUTION REINVESTMENT PLAN

In May 1996, the Company implemented a Distribution Reinvestment

Plan (the “Plan”).  The Plan provides owners of record of 100 shares or

more of its common and/or preferred stock the opportunity to reinvest

cash distributions in newly-issued common stock of the Company at a

5% discount from the market price. No open market purchases are

made under the Plan.  During the years ended December 31, 2006,

2005 and 2004, the Company issued 43,970, 31,441 and 72,214 com-

mon shares, respectively, under the Plan.

NOTE 11 – DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company

sold one and five properties, respectively.  In accordance with SFAS

144, “Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long Lived Assets,” the

Company recorded the results of operations and the related gain as

income from discontinued operations.

The following is a summary of income from discontinued operations for

the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 (in thousands):

2006 2005 2004

Revenues, primarily
rental income $ 1,362 $  2,387 $  5,309

Depreciation and amortization 97 474 745

Real estate expenses 47 698 734

Interest expense 335 553 223

Provision for valuation 
adjustment of real estate - 469 366

Total expenses 479 2,194 2,068

Income from 
discontinued operations  
before gain on sale 883 193 3,241

Net gain on sale of 
discontinued operations          3,660 (A) 1,905 -

Income from 
discontinued operations $  4,543 $  2,098 $  3,241

(A) The $3,660 gain has been deferred for federal tax purposes in accordance with 
Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Real estate investment, net of accumulated depreciation, and mortgage

payable for the one property sold during 2006 was $11,193,000 and

$6,783,000, respectively, at December 31, 2005.
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NOTE 12 – FORMER PRESIDENT RESIGNATION 
AND CONTINGENCIES

In July 2005, Jeffrey Fishman resigned as the Company’s president,

chief executive officer and a member of its Board of Directors following

the discovery of what appeared to be inappropriate financial dealings by

Mr. Fishman with a tenant of a movie theater property located in

Brooklyn, NY, owned by a joint venture in which the Company is a 50%

venture partner and the managing member. The Company reported this

matter to the Securities and Exchange Commission in July 2005. The

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors conducted an investigation

of this matter and related matters and retained special counsel to assist

the committee in the investigation. The investigation was completed

and the Audit Committee and its special counsel, based on the materi-

als gathered and interviews conducted found no evidence that any other

officer or employee of the Company was aware of, or knowingly assist-

ed in Mr. Fishman’s inappropriate financial dealings.

On August 12, 2005, the tenant of the Brooklyn, NY theater property,

(referred to in the preceding paragraph), Pritchard Square Cinema LLC,

and Pritchard Square LLC, commenced litigation in the Supreme Court

of the State of New York, Nassau County against the Company, certain

of its affiliated entities, Mr. Fishman and Britannia Management, LLC

(“Britannia”), a company which the Company believes is owned and/or

controlled by Mr. Fishman. Pritchard Square LLC was the seller and

Pritchard Square Cinema LLC was the tenant of the Brooklyn, NY prop-

erty which was acquired in a “sale and leaseback transaction” by the

joint venture. The tenant of the Brooklyn, NY theater sold its business

operations and assigned its interest as tenant under its lease to an unaf-

filiated entity in February 2005. In the litigation, the tenant and its relat-

ed entity allege that it or its affiliates paid $815,000 in the aggregate to

Mr. Fishman and/or Britannia. As against Mr. Fishman, Britannia, the

Company and affiliated entities, the complaint alleges fraud, breach of

contract, intentional tort, negligent supervision, respondeat superior,

negligent misrepresentation, tortious interference with prospective eco-

nomic relations and conduct in violation of the Racketeer Influenced

and Corrupt Organizations Act (“RICO”). The damages sought in the

complaint are $9 million plus punitive damages, interest and costs and

a demand for treble damages under RICO. The Brooklyn, NY property

was sold by the joint venture in September 2006. (See Note 4.)

On the same date that the complaint was filed against the Company and

certain of its affiliated entities, the Company filed suit in the Supreme

Court of the State of New York, Nassau County against the former ten-

ant of the Brooklyn, NY property, Norman Adie, the former tenant’s prin-

cipal, Jeffrey Fishman, Britannia and others. The Company’s complaint

alleges that Mr. Adie, Mr. Fishman and other defendants conspired to

defraud the Company. The Company’s lawsuit alleges commercial bribery,

fraud, breach of fiduciary duty, tortious interference, intentional tort,

violation of the New York Enterprise Corruption Act, respondeat superi-

or, unjust enrichment and violations of RICO. The damages alleged in this

lawsuit exceed $1 million, plus punitive damages, interest and costs. 

Motions were made by both parties to consolidate the two actions and

the Court has ordered a consolidation of the actions for all purposes. On

March 14, 2007, the consolidated actions were settled with respect to

Pritchard Square Cinema LLC, Pritchard Square LLC, Norman Adie (the

principal of both Pritchard Square entities) and certain other persons

associated or affiliated with the Pritchard Square entities and Mr. Adie

(Pritchard Square parties). The litigation commenced by the Company

and certain of its affiliated entities against Mr. Fishman, his wife and

Britannia will continue. Under the terms of a settlement agreement

entered into between the Pritchard Square parties and the Company, a

designee of Pritchard Square purchased from a joint venture in which

the Company is a 50% joint venture partner, a property located in

Monroe, New York for a consideration of $1,250,000.

On June 21, 2006 the Company announced that it had received notifi-

cation of a formal order of investigation from the SEC. Management

believes that the matters being investigated by the SEC focus on the

improper payments received by Mr. Fishman. The SEC has also requested

information regarding “related party” transactions between the

Company and entities affiliated with it and with certain of the Company’s

officers and directors and compensation paid to certain of the

Company’s executive officers by those affiliates. The Company’s Audit

Committee (and its counsel), having previously conducted an investiga-

tion regarding Mr. Fishman’s inappropriate financial dealings, conduct-

ed an investigation concerning “related party transactions”, which has

been substantially completed. The Company’s direct legal expenses

related to these investigations totaled $726,000 and $560,000 in the

years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

NOTE 13 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company maintains a non-contributory defined contribution pen-

sion plan covering eligible employees and officers. Contributions by the

Company are made through a money purchase plan, based upon a per-

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements |CONTINUED

DECEMBER 31, 2006
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cent of qualified employees’ total salary as defined. Pension expense

approximated $90,000, $60,000 and $56,000 during the years ended

December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. At December 31,

2006, $25,000 remains unpaid and is included in accrued expenses and

other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet. In the ordinary

course of business the Company is party to various legal actions which

management believes are routine in nature and incidental to the opera-

tion of the Company’s business. Management believes that the outcome

of the proceedings will not have a material adverse effect upon the

Company’s consolidated statements taken as a whole.

NOTE 14 – TAXES

The Company elected to be taxed as a real estate investment trust

(REIT) under the Internal Revenue Code, commencing with its taxable

year ended December 31, 1983.  To qualify as a REIT, the Company

must meet a number of organizational and operational requirements,

including a requirement that it currently distribute at least 90% of its

adjusted taxable income to its stockholders.  It is management’s current

intention to adhere to these requirements and maintain the Company’s

REIT status. As a REIT, the Company generally will not be subject to

corporate level federal, state and local income tax on taxable income it

distributes currently to its stockholders. If the Company fails to qualify

as a REIT in any taxable year, it will be subject to federal, state and local

income taxes at regular corporate rates (including any applicable alter-

native minimum tax) and may not be able to qualify as a REIT for four

subsequent taxable years.  Even though the Company qualifies for tax-

ation as a REIT, the Company is subject to certain state and local taxes

on its income and property, and to federal excise taxes on its undistrib-

uted taxable income.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company recorded a

$490,000 accrual of Federal excise tax which is based on taxable

income generated but not yet distributed.  Included in general and

administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005

and 2004 are state tax expense of $143,000, $140,000 and $107,000,

respectively.

RECONCILIATION BETWEEN FINANCIAL STATEMENT NET
INCOME AND FEDERAL TAXABLE INCOME:

The following unaudited table reconciles financial statement net income

to federal taxable income for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005

and 2004 (amounts in thousands):

2006 2005 2004
Estimate Actual Actual

Net income $  36,425 $  21,280 $ 10,974
Straight line rent adjustments (343)         (1,602)       (1,205)
Financial statement gain on 

sale in excess of tax gain (A) (3,660) (11,287) -
Rent received in advance, net             77             (590) 275
Financial statement provisions

for valuation adjustment 780 1,751 366
Fee income subject to tax,

not recorded for books - - 134
Financial statement 

adjustment for above/
below market leases                     (252)           (118) 188

Restricted stock expense, 
non-deductible 515 294 189

Financial statement 
depreciation in excess 
of tax depreciation 770 537 207

Other adjustments                   (47) 59 35
Federal taxable income $  34,265 $  10,324 $ 11,163

(A) Amounts include $3,660 GAAP gain on sale of real estate and $10,248 GAAP gain 
on sale of air rights for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively,
which were deferred for federal tax purposes in accordance with Section 1031 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

RECONCILIATION BETWEEN CASH DIVIDENDS PAID AND
DIVIDENDS PAID DEDUCTION:

The following unaudited table reconciles cash dividends paid with the

dividends paid deduction for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005

and 2004 (amounts in thousands):

2006 2005 2004
Estimate Actual Actual

Cash dividends paid $  13,420 $  12,990 $ 12,854
Dividend reinvestment plan(B) 59 37 57

13,479 13,027 12,911
Less: Spillover dividends

designated to following year(C) -       (3,265)       (3,235)
Less: Return of capital -     (2,623)     (1,109)
Plus: Spillover dividends

designated from prior year 3,265 3,235 2,646
Plus: Dividends designated 

from following year(D) 17,571 - -
Dividends paid deduction(E) $ 34,315 $ 10,374 $ 11,213

(B) Amount reflects the 5% discount on the Company’s common shares purchased
through the dividend reinvestment plan.

(C) The entire dividend paid in January 2006 and 2005 was considered 2006 and 2005
dividends, respectively, as it was in excess of the Company’s accumulated earnings
and profits through 2005 and 2004, respectively.

(D) This amount will be paid no later than the October 2007 dividend.
(E) Dividends paid deduction is slightly higher than federal taxable income in 2006, 2005

and 2004 so as to account for adjustments made to federal taxable income as a result
of the impact of the alternative minimum tax.
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NOTE 15 – QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED):

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 Total For Year

2006
Rental revenues as previously reported $    7,584 $    8,562 $    8,615               $    8,912 $  33,673
Revenues from discontinued operations (A) (303)                 - - -                   (303)
Revenues (B) $    7,281 $    8,562 $    8,615 $    8,912 $  33,370
Income from continuing operations $    2,932             $ 2,639 $    5,534 (C) $  20,777 (D) $ 31,882
Income from discontinued operations 138 553 201 3,651 4,543
Net income $   3,070            $ 3,192 $    5,735 (C) $ 24,428 (D) $ 36,425
Weighted average number of

common shares outstanding:
Basic 9,894 9,930 9,937 9,963 9,931
Diluted 9,897 9,934 9,940 9,963 9,934

Net income per common share - basic and diluted:
Income from continuing operations $     .30 $    .26 $     .56 $ 2.09                $    3.21 (E)

Income from discontinued operations .01 .06 .02 .37 .46 (E)

Net income $     .31 $    .32 $     .58 $    2.46                 $    3.67 (E)

(A) Excludes revenues from discontinued operations which were previously excluded from total revenues as previously reported in the June, September and December 2006 quarters.
(B) Amounts have been adjusted to give effect to the Company’s discontinued operations in accordance with Statement No. 144.
(C) Includes $3,294 (or $.33 per common share) from gain on disposition of real estate related to unconsolidated joint venture.
(D) Includes $23,614 (or $2.37 per common share) from gain on dispositions of real estate related to unconsolidated joint ventures.
(E) Calculated on weighted average shares outstanding for the year.

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 Total For Year

2005
Rental revenues as previously reported $ 7,106 $ 7,174 $ 7,107 $ 7,545 $  28,932
Revenues from discontinued operations (F) (633)                 (461)                      (303)                     (303)                  (1,700)
Revenues (G) $ 6,473 $ 6,713 $ 6,804 $ 7,242 $ 27,232
Income from continuing operations $ 2,728 $ 12,763(H) $ 1,026 $ 2,665 $ 19,182
Income (loss) from discontinued operations                  (5) 520 703 880 2,098
Net income $ 2,723 $ 13,283(H) $ 1,729 $ 3,545 $ 21,280
Weighted average number of

common shares outstanding:
Basic 9,795 9,841 9,852 9,863 9,838
Diluted 9,802 9,845 9,857 9,868 9,843

Net income per common share - basic and diluted:
Income from continuing operations $     .28 $      1.30 $      .11 $   .27                 $      1.95 (I)

Income from discontinued operations - .05 .07                       .09                          .21 (I)

Net income $     .28 $     1.35 $      .18 $     .36                  $     2.16(I)

(F) Excludes revenues from discontinued operations which were previously excluded from total revenues as previously reported in the September and December 2005 quarters.
(G) Amounts have been adjusted to give effect to the Company’s discontinued operations in accordance with Statement No. 144.
(H) Includes $10,248 (or $1.04 per common share) from the sale of air rights.
(I)  Calculated on weighted average shares outstanding for the year.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining ade-
quate internal control over financial reporting. Internal control over
financial reporting is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) promul-
gated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as 
a process designed by, or under the supervision of, a company’s 
principal executive and principal financial officers and effected by a
company’s board, management and other personnel to provide reason-
able assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with GAAP and includes those policies and procedures that:

• pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accu-
rately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of a company;

• provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as nec-
essary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with GAAP, and that receipts and expenditures of a company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of a company; and

• provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detec-
tion of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of a company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial 
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Projections of any

evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risks that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control 
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006. In making this
assessment, our management used criteria set forth by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework.

Based on its assessment, our management believes that, as of
December 31, 2006, our internal control over financial reporting was
effective based on those criteria.

Our independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP,
has issued an audit report on management’s assessment of our internal
control over financial reporting. This report appears on page 26 of this
Annual Report.

Fredric H. Gould David W. Kalish
President and Chief Senior Vice President
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

We have audited the accompanying consolidat-
ed balance sheets of One Liberty Properties,
Inc. and Subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related
consolidated statements of income, stock-
holders’ equity and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31,
2006. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with
the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and per-
form the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free 

of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement pres-
entation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of One
Liberty Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries at
December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the consoli-
dated results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the period 
ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the effective-
ness of One Liberty Properties, Inc. and
Subsidiaries’ internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on
criteria established in Internal Control –
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission and our report dated March 14,
2007 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

New York, New York
March 14, 2007

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS OF ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Management Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We have audited management’s assessment,
included in the accompanying Management
Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting in Item 9A, Controls and Procedures,
of Form 10K, that One Liberty Properties, Inc.
and Subsidiaries (the “Company”) maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting
and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on man-
agement’s assessment and an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those stan-
dards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an under-
standing of internal control over financial 
reporting, evaluating management’s assess-
ment, testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control, and 

performing such other procedures as we con-
sidered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide rea-
sonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finan-
cial statements for external purposes in accor-
dance with generally accepted accounting prin-
ciples. A company’s internal control over finan-
cial reporting includes those policies and proce-
dures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and disposi-
tions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with gener-
ally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authoriza-
tions of management and directors of the com-
pany; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal con-
trol over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the poli-
cies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that
the Company maintained effective internal con-
trol over financial reporting as of December 31,
2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects,
based on the COSO criteria. Also, in our opin-
ion, the Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on
the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the consoli-
dated balance sheets of One Liberty Properties,
Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006
and 2005, and the related consolidated state-
ments of income, stockholders’ equity, and
cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2006 of the
Company and our report dated March 14, 2007
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

New York, New York
March 14, 2007

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS OF ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

COMMON STOCK 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
Year Ended High $ 21.00 $ 21.00 $  22.40 $ 25.53
December  31, 2006 Low 18.33 17.91 18.66 22.01
Cash distributions per share .33 .33 .33 .36
Year Ended High $  20.70 $  21.40 $  22.64 $  20.19
December 31, 2005 Low 18.50 18.65 19.20 18.41
Cash distributions per share .33 .33 .33 .33

Stock Price Ranges and Cash Distributions by Quarter                           
(QUOTES FROM NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE) 
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the performance of our common stock with the Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index and a peer group index of publicly
traded equity real estate investment trusts prepared by the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts. The graph assumes $100 was 
invested on December 31, 2001 in our common stock and assumes the reinvestment of dividends.

CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

12/01 12/02 12/03 12/04 12/05 12/06

One Liberty Properties, Inc. 100.00 111.31 155.85 173.12 164.47 238.89

S & P 500 100.00 77.90 100.24 111.15 116.61 135.03

NAREIT Equity 100.00 103.82 142.37 187.33 210.12 283.78

The stock price performance included in this graph is not necessarily indicative of future stock price performance.
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COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among One Liberty Properties, Inc., The S&P 500 Index and The NAREIT Equity Index

ONE LIBERTY PROPERTIES, INC.                    S&P 500                    NAREIT EQUITY

*$100 invested on 12/31/01 in stock or index-including reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal year ending December 31.
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Note a: Certain amounts reported in prior periods have been reclassified to conform to 
the current year’s presentation.

Note b: For the year ended December 31, 2006, “Equity in (loss) earnings of unconsolidated
joint ventures” is after giving effect to $5.3 million, our share of the mortgage 
prepayment premium expense incurred in connection with the dispositions of 
real estate of unconsolidated joint ventures. This expense is reflected as interest
expense on the books of the joint ventures and not netted against the gain 
on dispositions.

Note c: On December 30, 2003, we redeemed all of our outstanding preferred stock.
Note d: We consider funds from operations (FFO) to be a relevant and meaningful 

supplemental measure of the operating performance of an equity REIT, and it

should not be deemed to be a measure of liquidity. FFO does not represent cash 
generated from operations as defined by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
and is not indicative of cash available to fund all cash needs, including distributions. It
should not be considered as an alternative to net income for the purpose of evaluating our
performance or to cash flows as a measure of liquidity. We compute FFO in accordance
with the “White Paper on Funds From Operations” issued in April 2002 by the National
Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (NAREIT). FFO is defined in the White Paper
as “net income (computed in accordance with generally accepting accounting principles),
excluding gains (or losses) from sales of property, plus depreciation and amortization, and
after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures. Adjustments for
unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures will be calculated to reflect funds from
operations on the same basis.” In computing FFO, we do not add back to net 

As of and for the Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

OPERATING DATA (Note a)

Rental revenues $ 33,370 $ 27,232 $ 20,833 $ 16,170 $ 13,718
Equity in (loss) earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures (Note b)                       (3,276) 2,102 2,869 2,411 1,078
Gain on dispositions of real estate of unconsolidated joint ventures 26,908 - - - -
Net gain (loss) on sale of air rights, other and real estate 413 10,248 73 14               (29)
Income from continuing operations 31,882 19,182 7,733 6,406 5,133
Income from discontinued operations 4,543 2,098 3,241 2,119 747
Net income 36,425 21,280 10,974 8,525 5,880
Calculation of net income applicable to common stockholders (Note c):

Net income 36,425 21,280 10,974 8,525 5,880
Less: dividends and accretion on preferred stock - - - 1,037 1,037

Net income applicable to common stockholders $ 36,425 $ 21,280 $ 10,974 $  7,488 $   4,843
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:

Basic 9,931 9,838 9,728 6,340 4,614
Diluted 9,934 9,843 9,744 6,372 4,644

Net income per common share - basic: 
Income from continuing operations $     3.21 $      1.95 $      .80 $    .85 $   .89
Income from discontinued operations .46 .21 .33 .33 .16

Net income $     3.67 $      2.16 $     1.13 $      1.18 $     1.05
Net income per common share - diluted: 

Income from continuing operations $     3.21 $      1.95 $      .80 $    .85 $   .88
Income from discontinued operations .46 .21 .33 .33 .16

Net income $     3.67 $      2.16 $     1.13 $      1.18 $  1.04
Cash distributions per share of:

Common Stock $     1.35 $      1.32 $      1.32 $      1.32 $     1.32
Preferred Stock (Note c) $ - $ - $    - $      1.60 $     1.60

BALANCE SHEET DATA

Real estate investments, net $ 351,841 $ 258,122 $ 228,536 $ 177,316 $ 140,437
Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures 7,014 27,335 37,023 24,441 23,453
Cash and cash equivalents 34,013 26,749 6,051 45,944 2,624
Total assets 422,037 330,583 284,386 259,089 179,609
Mortgages and loan payable 227,923 167,472 124,019 106,133 77,367
Line of credit - - 7,600 - 10,000
Total liabilities 241,912 175,064 138,271 113,120 90,915
Total stockholders’ equity 180,125 155,519 146,115 145,969 88,694
OTHER DATA (Note d)

Funds from operations applicable to common stockholders $ 13,707 $ 26,658 $ 16,789 $ 11,776 $ 7,757
Funds from operations per common share:

Basic $ 1.38 $ 2.71 $ 1.73 $      1.86 $ 1.68
Diluted $ 1.38 $      2.71 $  1.72 $      1.85 $ 1.67

Five Year Summary of Selected Financial Data                          
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) 
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income the amortization of costs in connection with our financing activities, or depreciation
of non-real estate assets, but those items that are defined as “extraordinary” under GAAP
are added back to net income. Since the NAREIT White Paper only provides guidelines for
computing FFO, the computation of FFO may vary from one REIT to another.
We believe that FFO is a useful and a standard supplemental measure of the operating per-
formance for equity REITs and is used frequently by securities analysts, investors 
and other interested parties in evaluating equity REITs, many of which present FFO 
when reporting their operating results. FFO is intended to exclude GAAP historical cost 
depreciation and amortization of real estate assets, which assures that the value of real
estate assets diminish predictability over time. In fact, real estate values have historically
risen and fallen with market conditions. As a result, we believe that FFO provides a 
performance measure that when compared year over year, should reflect the impact to
operations from trends in occupancy rates, rental rates, operating costs, interest costs and
other matters without the inclusion of depreciation and amortization, providing a 

The table below provides a reconciliation of net income in accordance with GAAP to FFO, as calculated under the current NAREIT definition of FFO, for
each of the years in the five year period ended December 31, 2006, and to adjusted FFO as presented in “To Our Stockholders” letter for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005.

perspective that may not be necessarily apparent from net income. We also consider 
FFO to be useful to us in evaluating potential property acquisitions.
FFO does not represent net income or cash flows from operations as defined by GAAP.
FFO should not be considered to be an alternative to net income as a reliable measure 
of our operating performance; nor should FFO be considered to be an alternative to 
cash flows from operating, investing or financing activities (as defined by GAAP) as 
measures of liquidity.
FFO does not measure whether cash flow is sufficient to fund all of our cash needs, includ-
ing principal amortization, capital improvements and distributions to stockholders. FFO does
not represent cash flows from operating, investing or financing activities as defined by GAAP.
Management recognizes that there are limitations in the use of FFO. In evaluating the 
performance of our company, management is careful to examine GAAP measures such 
as net income and cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities.
Management also reviews the reconciliation of net income to FFO.

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Net income (Note 1) $  36,425 $  21,280 $ 10,974 $  8,525 $ 5,880
Add: depreciation of properties 7,091 5,905 4,758 3,473 2,617
Add: our share of depreciation in unconsolidated joint ventures 716 1,277 1,075 790 268
Add: amortization of deferred leasing costs 43 101 55 39 -
Deduct: (gain) loss on sale of real estate                                                           (3,660)      (1,905)               (73) (14)               29
Deduct: gain on dispositions of real estate of unconsolidated joint ventures        (26,908) - - - -
Deduct: preferred distributions - -           -     (1,037)          (1,037)
Funds from operations applicable to common stockholders (Note 1) 13,707 26,658 $ 16,789 $ 11,776 $ 7,757
Add: our share of mortgage prepayment penalties of unconsolidated 

joint ventures                                                                                              5,269 -
Deduct: gain on sale of air rights -          (10,248)
Adjusted funds from operations as presented in “To Our Stockholders” letter $  18,976 $  16,410

Note 1: For the year ended December 31, 2006, net income and funds from operations applicable to common stockholders (FFO) is after giving effect to $5.3 million, our share of the mortgage
prepayment premium expense incurred in connection with the dispositions of real estate of unconsolidated joint ventures. This expense is reflected as interest expense on the books of the 
joint ventures and not netted against gain on dispositions.
For the year ended December 31, 2005, net income and FFO include $10.2 million from the gain on sale of air rights.

The table below provides a reconciliation of net income per common share (on a diluted basis) in accordance with GAAP to FFO, and to adjusted FFO as
presented in “To Our Stockholders” letter for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005.

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Net income (Note 2) $ 3.67 $     2.16 $     1.13 $    1.34 $     1.27
Add: depreciation of properties .71 .60 .49 .55 .56
Add: our share of depreciation in unconsolidated joint ventures .07 .13 .11 .12 .06
Add: amortization of deferred leasing costs .01 .01 - - -
Deduct: gain on sale of real estate                                                           (.37)       (.19)               (.01)    -    -
Deduct: gain on dispositions of real estate of unconsolidated joint ventures        (2.71) - -                    -            -
Deduct: preferred distributions - -                 -             (.16)        (.22)
Funds from operations applicable to common stockholders (Note 2) 1.38 2.71 $     1.72 $    1.85 $     1.67
Add: our share of mortgage prepayment penalties of unconsolidated 

joint ventures                                                                                                    0.53                    -
Deduct: gain on sale of air rights - (1.04)
Adjusted funds from operations per common share as presented 

in “To Our Stockholders” letter $    1.91 $  1.67

Note 2: For the year ended December 31, 2006, net income and FFO is after $.53, our share of the mortgage prepayment premium expense. See Note 1 above. For the year ended December 31,
2005, net income and FFO include $1.04 from the gain on sale of air rights.
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GENERAL

We are a self-administered and self-managed
REIT and we primarily own real estate that we
net lease to tenants. As of December 31, 2006,
we owned 66 properties, including a 50% ten-
ancy in common interest in one property, and
participated in seven joint ventures that owned
a total of six properties (including two vacant
properties held for sale). These 72 properties
are located in 28 states.

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT under the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. To
qualify as a REIT, we must meet a number of
organizational and operational requirements,
including a requirement that we currently 
distribute at least 90% of ordinary taxable
income to our stockholders. We intend to com-
ply with these requirements and to maintain our
REIT status.

Our principal business strategy is to acquire
improved, commercial properties subject to
long-term net leases. We acquire properties for
their value as long-term investments and for
their ability to generate income over an extended
period of time. We have borrowed funds in the
past to finance the purchase of real estate and
we expect to do so in the future.

Our rental properties are generally leased to
corporate tenants under operating leases sub-
stantially all of which are noncancellable.
Substantially all of our lease agreements are net
lease arrangements that require the tenant to
pay not only rent, but also substantially all of
the operating expenses of the leased property,
including maintenance, taxes, utilities and
insurance. A majority of our lease agreements
provide for periodic rental increases and certain
of our other leases provide for increases based
on the consumer price index.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, we
purchased 22 single tenant properties located
in 11 states, for a total consideration of $111.9
million. These purchases include our April 2006
acquisition of 11 properties for a consideration
of $55.7 million that are net leased to a single
tenant under a master lease. An aggregate of
$35.9 million of first mortgage financing was

completed with respect to ten of these proper-
ties and we assumed a pre-existing first mort-
gage loan of $27 million on the 11 properties
purchased in April 2006.

We are a venturer in two joint ventures organ-
ized for the purpose of acquiring and owning
megaplex stadium-style movie theaters. We
own a 50% equity interest and are the manag-
ing member in each of these ventures with the
same co-venturer. One of our movie theater
joint ventures sold all five of its movie theater
properties in October 2006 for $91.3 million
and realized a gain of $35.2 million on the sale,
after the payment of closing expenses and bro-
kerage fees. In connection with this sale, the
joint venture paid $4.9 million in prepayment
premiums to its mortgage lender, which is
reflected as interest expense on the books of
the joint venture and not netted against the gain
on sale. This movie theater joint venture does
not currently own any real property. The second
movie theater joint venture sold one movie the-
ater property in September 2006 for $16 million
and three movie theater properties in October
2006 for $45.3 million, and realized an aggre-
gate gain of $20.5 million on the sales, after the
payment of closing expenses and brokerage
fees. In connection with these sales, the joint
venture paid $5.6 million in prepayment premi-
ums to its mortgage lenders, which is reflected
as interest expense and not netted against the
gain on sale. At December 31, 2006, the second
movie theater joint venture owned one property,
.26 of an acre of vacant land located in Monroe,
New York, and sold this property in March
2007. Our equity investment in these joint ven-
tures at December 31, 2006 was $284,000, net
of distributions. As of December 31, 2006, we
are also a joint venturer in five additional joint
ventures, each of which owns one single-ten-
anted property. Our equity investment in these
five joint ventures at December 31, 2006 was
$6.7 million, net of distributions.

At December 31, 2006, excluding mortgages
payable of our unconsolidated joint ventures,
we had 36 outstanding mortgages payable,
aggregating $221 million in principal amount,
all of which are secured by first liens on in-
dividual real estate investments with an aggre-

gate carrying value, as adjusted for intangibles,
of approximately $351.8 million before accu-
mulated depreciation. The mortgages bear
interest at fixed rates ranging from 5.13% to
8.8%, and mature between 2007 and 2037. In
addition, we had one loan payable outstanding
with a principal amount of $6.6 million, bearing
interest at 6.25% and maturing in 2018.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OUTLOOK

We anticipate that in 2007 we will use any avail-
able cash (after taking into account required
cash distributions to shareholders), funds
derived from the placement of additional mort-
gages and a credit line to acquire additional
properties, either directly or through joint ven-
tures. As a result, we anticipate that we will
acquire and own additional properties and
unless we experience an unexpected number of
lease terminations and/or cancellations in 2007
(taking into consideration the lease expirations
and terminations that we know will occur in
2007, and without giving effect to any re-letting
of such properties), we anticipate that our 
revenues will increase in 2007.

COMPARISON OF YEARS 
ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 
AND DECEMBER 31, 2005

RENTAL REVENUES

Rental revenues increased by $6.1 million, or
22.5%, to $33.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006 from $27.2 million for the
year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in
rental revenues is substantially due to rental
revenues earned during the year ended
December 31, 2006 on 30 properties acquired by
us between January 2005 and December 2006.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Depreciation and amortization expense
increased by $1.6 million, or 28.8%, to $7 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2006 from
$5.4 million for the year ended December 31,
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2005. The increase in depreciation and amortiza-
tion was due to the acquisition of 30 properties
between January 2005 and December 2006.

General and administrative expenses increased
by $1.1 million, or 26.8%, to $5.3 million for
the year ended December 31, 2006 from $4.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2005.
The increase was due to a number of factors,
including a $495,000 increase in payroll and
payroll related expenses resulting primarily
from compensation paid to our president (elect-
ed effective January 1, 2006) for all of 2006,
while we did not have any payroll expenses for
our president for five months in 2005, as well
as from staff increases. An increase of
$166,000 relates to professional fees incurred
in connection with an investigation by the
Securities and Exchange Commission described
in our Form 10-K (Part I – Item 3 – Legal
Proceedings) and investigations by our Audit
Committee. Similarly, there was an increase of
$72,000 in legal fees relating to a civil litigation
arising out of the activities of our former 
president and chief executive officer.
Additionally, for the year ended December 31,
2006, expenses allocated to us under the
Shared Services Agreement among us and var-
ious affiliated companies, increased by
$109,000 for executive and support personnel,
primarily legal and accounting services, a 
significant portion of which relates to the SEC
and Audit Committee investigations, as well as
to property acquisitions and the overall increase
in the level of our business activity. Also 
included in the year ended December 31, 2006,
is a $222,000 increase in compensation
expense relating to our restricted stock pro-
gram. The balance of the increase in general
and administrative expenses includes an
increase in directors’ fees.

Federal excise tax of $490,000 was accrued at
December 31, 2006, based on taxable income
generated but not yet distributed. There was no
such tax for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Real estate expenses decreased by $74,000, or
21.5%, to $270,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2006, resulting primarily from 
unusual repair items incurred in the year ended
December 31, 2005 at three properties.

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES

Our equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint
ventures decreased by $5.4 million, or 256%,
to a loss of $3.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006 from income of $2.1 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2005.
This decrease resulted primarily from $10.5
million of prepayment premiums, of which
50%, or $5.3 million is our share, paid by two
of our joint ventures upon the sales of its nine
movie theater properties. Such sales also con-
tributed to an operating income decrease from
these ventures of $1.3 million, of which
$646,000 is our share, caused by a decrease in
rental income, offset in part by a decrease in
mortgage interest expense and depreciation.
The decrease in earnings from unconsolidated 
joint ventures also resulted from a $960,000
provision for valuation adjustment, of which
50%, or $480,000 was our share, by one of our
joint ventures which owns a vacant property.
These decreases were offset, in part, by a $2.56
million provision for valuation adjustment taken
in the year ended December 31, 2005 by one of
our movie theater joint ventures against its
vacant parcel of land, of which 50%, or $1.3
million, was our share. During the year ended
December 31, 2006, the joint venture recorded
an additional $600,000 provision against this
property, of which $300,000 is our share. The
joint venture sold this property in March 2007
for an aggregate consideration of $1.25 million.

Gain on dispositions of real estate of unconsol-
idated joint ventures resulted from the sales of
nine movie theater properties by two of our
joint ventures. On September 13, 2006, one of
our joint ventures sold a movie theater proper-
ty located in Brooklyn, New York to an unrelat-
ed party for $16 million. The joint venture rec-
ognized a gain of $6.6 million on the sale, of
which our share is $3.3 million. On October 5,
2006, two of our joint ventures sold eight movie
theater properties to a single unrelated party for
an aggregate of $136.7 million and realized a
gain of $49 million on the sale, of which $24.5
million is our share. We wrote off the unamor-
tized premium balance of $924,000 in our invest-
ment in this joint venture against such gain.

Interest and other income increased by
$585,000, or 186%, to $899,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2006. The primary reason
for the increase was the investment in short-
term cash equivalents of the distributions
received from the movie theater joint ventures
upon the sale of its nine theater properties.

Interest expense increased by $2.8 million, or
28.3%, including an increase of $2.9 million on
our mortgages payable, principally resulting
from mortgages placed on 20 properties
between March 2005 and December 2006 and
the assumption of a mortgage in connection
with the purchase of 11 properties in April
2007. The increase was offset by a $215,000
decrease in interest expense related to our line
of credit.

During February 2006, we sold an option to buy
an interest in certain property adjacent to one of
our properties and recognized a gain on the sale
of $228,000. In June 2005, we closed on the
sale of unused development or “air rights”
relating to our property located in Brooklyn,
New York for a net gain, after closing costs, of
approximately $10.25 million. These gains are
included in “Gain on sale of air rights and 
other gains.”

Included in gain on sale of real estate is our sale
of excess acreage at a property we own to an
unrelated party. We recognized a gain of
$185,000 in July 2006 from this sale.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Income from discontinued operations
increased by $2.4 million, or 117%, to $4.5 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2006.
This increase was primarily due to the $3.7 mil-
lion gain on sale of a movie theater that was
wholly owned by us and sold for $15.2 million.
This sale was part of a sale which closed on
October 5, 2006 pursuant to which an unrelat-
ed party purchased one movie theater from us
and eight movie theaters from two of our joint
ventures. This increase was offset in part by net
gains of $1.9 million in the year ended
December 31, 2005 on the sale of five of our
properties. The increase in discontinued
operations also resulted from an increase in
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income from operations caused by a $469,000
provision for valuation adjustment that was
recorded in the year ended December 31, 2005
against one of the properties which was sold
later in that year.

COMPARISON OF YEARS 
ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 
AND DECEMBER 31, 2004

RENTAL REVENUES

Rental revenues increased by $6.4 million, or
30.7%, to $27.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005 from $20.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2004. The increase in
rental revenues is substantially due to rental
revenues earned during the year ended
December 31, 2005 on fourteen properties
acquired by us between March 2004 and
November 2005.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Depreciation and amortization expense
increased by $1.4 million, or 35.4%, to $5.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2005
from $4 million for the year ended December
31, 2004. The increase in depreciation and
amortization was due to the acquisition of four-
teen properties between March 2004 and
November 2005.

General and administrative expenses increased
by $1 million, or 32.4%, to $4.1 million for the
year ended December 31, 2005 from $3.1 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2004. The
increase was due to a number of factors, the
largest of which (totaling $560,000 and repre-
senting approximately 55% of the increase)
relates to the fees of Special Counsel retained
by our Audit Committee in connection with its
investigation into certain financial dealings of
our former president and chief executive officer.
Additional legal fees were incurred relating to a
litigation arising out of the matter involving our
former president and chief executive officer. In
addition, for the year ended December 31, 2005
expenses allocated to us under a Shared
Services Agreement among us and various
affiliated companies, increased by $228,000,
primarily due to an increase in our level of busi-

ness activity, including property acquisitions,
mortgage financings, Sarbanes-Oxley Act com-
pliance, and activities related to the Audit
Committee’s investigation. Also included in the
year ended December 31, 2005 is a $73,000
increase in compensation expense relating to
the restricted stock program established in July
2003. The balance of the increase in general
and administrative expenses for the year ended
December 31, 2005, as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2004, is due to increases
in a number of items including auditing expens-
es, fees relating to our internal control audit, as
required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act, an increase in directors’ fees (resulting pri-
marily from additional fees to members of our
Audit Committee in connection with its investi-
gation), an increase in directors and officers lia-
bility insurance, and an increase in state taxes.
Offsetting these increases in expenses was a
decrease in payroll and payroll related expens-
es resulting from the resignation of our presi-
dent and chief executive officer in July 2005
and a decrease in public company expense as
we incurred a listing fee in 2004 in connection
with the listing of our common stock on the
New York Stock Exchange.

Real estate expenses decreased by $151,000,
or 30.5%, to $344,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2005. This decrease was prima-
rily due to real estate operating expenses
incurred at two vacant properties in 2004, one
of which was sold in 2004 and the other reno-
vated and relet.

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES

Our equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint
ventures decreased by $767,000, or 26.7%, to
$2.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2005 from $2.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004. The decrease resulted pri-
marily from a $2.56 million provision for valua-
tion adjustment taken by one of our movie the-
ater joint ventures against one of its five prop-
erties, of which 50%, or $1.3 million, is our
share. The decrease in our equity in earnings of
joint ventures year versus year was also a result
of the vacancy (due to the rejection of the lease
by the bankrupt tenant) of a retail property

owned by a joint venture in which we have a
50% equity position, and the sale in 2004 by
this venture of its bankruptcy claim against the
former tenant. The decrease in our equity in
earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures was
offset in part by our share of income earned by
two joint ventures organized in the second half
of 2004. Additionally, in 2005, the operator of
one of the movie theaters owned by one of our
joint ventures sold its business to an independ-
ent third party, which sale resulted in the pay-
ment to us in 2005 of rental arrearages totaling
$592,000. We have a 50% interest in this joint
venture and the payment resulted in an addi-
tional $296,000 in equity earnings to us for the
year ended December 31, 2005. An additional
increase in equity earnings to us in 2005 result-
ed from rent payments from the new tenant of
this movie theater and the write off during the
year ended December 31, 2004 of the entire
balance of the unbilled rent receivable relating
to this movie theater.

Interest and other income decreased by
$72,000, or 18.7% to $314,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2005. The primary reason
for the decrease was the receipt by us in 2004
of $134,000 of net acquisition fees from a joint
venture we organized in that year. The net
acquisition fee reflects a 50% reduction based
on our ownership in the joint venture. This
decrease was offset, in part, by an increase of
$57,000 in interest income earned in 2005 from
the investment of funds obtained from mort-
gage financings and property sales.

Interest expense increased by $1.6 million, or
19.4%, $1.4 million of which resulted from
mortgages placed on twelve properties between
September 2004 and December 2005 and the
assumption of a mortgage in connection with
the purchase of one property in November
2004. The increases were offset by a $432,000
decrease in interest on a mortgage which was
paid in full at its maturity during May 2005.
Interest expense related to our line of credit
increased by $229,000 due to borrowings made
to facilitate the purchase of several properties.
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On June 30, 2005, we closed on the sale of
unused development or “air rights” relating to
our property located in Brooklyn, New York. The
purchase price was approximately $11 million
and in addition, the purchaser paid some of our
closing expenses. The financial statement gain
of $10.25 million, recognized in the year ended
December 31, 2005, has been deferred for tax
purposes since we entered into a 1031 tax
deferred exchange and used the sale proceeds
to acquire an additional property.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In May 2005, we sold a property located in
Jupiter, Florida for $16.5 million and recognized
a gain of $582,000.

In September 2005, we sold a property located
in Cedar Rapids, Iowa for $1.8 million and rec-
ognized a gain of $639,000.

In October 2005, we sold a property located in
Houston, Texas for $1.5 million and recognized
a gain of $324,000.

In November 2005, we sold a property located
in Chattanooga, Tennessee for $3 million and
recognized a gain of $369,000.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, we
determined that the estimated fair value of a
property held for sale was lower then the carry-
ing amount and we recorded a $469,000 provi-
sion for the difference. This provision was in
addition to the $366,000 provision on this
property recorded by us for the year ended
December 31, 2004. In early 2004, the retail 
tenant at this property filed for bankruptcy 
protection, disaffirmed its lease and vacated the

store. This property was sold for a loss of
$9,000 (after giving effect to the $835,000 in
total provisions) in December 2005.

The operations of these five properties that
were sold in 2005 and the one property sold in
2006 and the gain or loss recognized on sale
are reported as discontinued operations. For
the year ended December 31, 2005 these six
properties generated net income of $193,000
as compared to net income in the year ended
December 31, 2004 of $3.2 million. The net
gain on sale of these five properties in 2005 was
$1.9 million. Accordingly, we reported income
from discontinued operations of $2.1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2005 as com-
pared to $3.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004, a decrease of $1.1 million
year versus year.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our primary sources of liquidity are cash and
cash equivalents, our revolving credit facility
and cash generated from operating activities,
including mortgage financings. We are a party
to a credit agreement, as amended, with VNB
New York Corp., Bank Leumi, USA,
Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company and
Israel Discount Bank of New York which pro-
vides for a $62.5 million revolving credit facili-
ty. The credit facility is available to us to pay
down existing mortgages, to fund the acquisi-
tion of additional properties or to invest in joint
ventures. The facility matures on March 31,
2007. Borrowings under the facility bear interest
at the lower of LIBOR plus 2.50% or at the 

bank’s prime rate and there is an unused facility
fee of 1/4% per annum. Net proceeds received
from the sale or refinancing of properties are
required to be used to repay amounts out-
standing under the facility if proceeds from the
facility were used to purchase or refinance the
property. The facility is guaranteed by our 
subsidiaries that own unencumbered properties
and is secured by the outstanding stock of sub-
sidiary entities. As of December 31, 2006 and
as of March 1, 2007, there is no outstanding
balance under the facility. We are in the process
of amending our credit facility which will extend
the maturity date from March 31, 2007 to
March 31, 2010 and will reduce the interest rate 
from its current rate to the lower of LIBOR plus
2.15% or the bank’s prime rate. All other mate-
rial terms and conditions contained in our cur-
rent credit facility will remain the same. We will
pay a commitment fee and other expenses of
approximately $650,000 in connection with this
amendment.

We are actively engaged in seeking additional
property acquisitions and are involved in vari-
ous stages of negotiation with respect to the
acquisition of additional net leased properties.
We will use our available cash and cash equiv-
alents, cash provided from operations, cash
provided from mortgage financings and funds
available under our credit facility to fund 
acquisitions.

The following sets forth our contractual cash
obligations as of December 31, 2006, which
relate to interest and amortization payments
and balances due at maturity under outstanding
mortgages secured by our properties for the
periods indicated (amounts in thousands):

Payment due by period

Less than 1-3 4-5 More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years

Mortgages and loan payable -

interest and amortization $ 158,422 $  18,432 $  38,005 $  26,909 $  75,076

Mortgages and loan payable -

balances due at maturity 171,302 3,831 8,776 26,817 131,878

Total $ 329,724 $ 22,263 $ 46,781 $ 53,726 $ 206,954
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As of December 31, 2006, we had outstanding
approximately $228 million in long-term 
mortgage and loan indebtedness (excluding
mortgage indebtedness of our unconsolidated
joint ventures), all of which is non-recourse
(subject to standard carve-outs). We expect
that debt service payments of approximately
$56.4 million due in the next three years will be 

paid primarily from cash generated from our 
operations. We anticipate that loan maturities of
approximately $12.6 million due in the next
three years will be paid primarily from mortgage
financings or refinancings. If we are not success-
ful in refinancing our existing indebtedness or
financing our unencumbered properties, our
cash flow, funds available under our credit 
facility and available cash, if any, may not be 

sufficient to repay all maturing debt when pay-
ments become due, and we may be forced to
sell additional equity or dispose of properties
on disadvantageous terms.

In addition, we, as ground lessee, are obligated
to pay rent under a ground lease for a property
owned in fee by an unrelated third party. The
annual fixed leasehold rent expense is as follows:

We had no outstanding contingent commit-
ments, such as guarantees of indebtedness, or
any other contractual cash obligations at
December 31, 2006.

CASH DISTRIBUTION POLICY

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT under the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. To
qualify as a REIT, we must meet a number of
organizational and operational requirements,
including a requirement that we distribute cur-
rently at least 90% of our ordinary taxable
income to our stockholders. It is our current
intention to comply with these requirements
and maintain our REIT status. As a REIT, we
generally will not be subject to corporate feder-
al, state or local income taxes on taxable
income we distribute currently (in accordance
with the Internal Revenue Code and applicable
regulations) to our stockholders. If we fail to
qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, we will be
subject to federal, state and local income taxes
at regular corporate rates and may not be able
to qualify as a REIT for four subsequent tax
years. Even if we qualify for federal taxation as
a REIT, we may be subject to certain state and
local taxes on our income and to federal income
taxes on our undistributed taxable income (i.e.,
taxable income not distributed in the amounts
and in the time frames prescribed by the
Internal Revenue Code and applicable regula-

tions thereunder) and are subject to federal
excise taxes on our undistributed taxable income.

It is our intention to pay to our stockholders
within the time periods prescribed by the
Internal Revenue Code no less than 90%, and,
if possible, 100% of our annual taxable income,
including taxable gains from the sale of real
estate and recognized gains on the sale of secu-
rities. It will continue to be our policy to make
sufficient cash distributions to stockholders in
order for us to maintain our REIT status under
the Internal Revenue Code.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET
ARRANGEMENTS

We do not have any off-balance sheet 
arrangements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our significant accounting policies are more
fully described in Note 2 to our consolidated
financial statements. Certain of our accounting
policies are particularly important to an under-
standing of our financial position and results of
operations and require the application of signif-
icant judgment by our management; as a result
they are subject to a degree of uncertainty.
These significant accounting policies include:

REVENUES

Our revenues, which are substantially derived
from rental income, include rental income that
our tenants pay in accordance with the terms of
their respective leases reported on a straight
line basis over the initial term of each lease.
Since many of our leases provide for rental
increases at specified intervals, straight line
basis accounting requires us to record as an
asset and include in revenues, unbilled rent
receivables which we will only receive if the ten-
ant makes all rent payments required through
the expiration of the initial term of the lease.
Accordingly, our management must determine,
in its judgment, that the unbilled rent receivable
applicable to each specific tenant is collectible.
We review unbilled rent receivables on a quar-
terly basis and take into consideration the ten-
ant’s payment history, the financial condition of
the tenant, business conditions in the industry
in which the tenant is engaged and economic
conditions in the area in which the property is
located. In the event that the collectability of an
unbilled rent receivable is in doubt, we would be
required to take a reserve against the receivable
or a direct write off of the receivable, which
would have an adverse affect on net income for
the year in which the reserve or direct write off
is taken and would decrease total assets and
stockholders’ equity.

VALUE OF REAL ESTATE PORTFOLIO
We review our real estate portfolio on a quarterly
basis to ascertain if there has been any impair-

More than
Total 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 5 Years

$ 4,223,976 $ 237,500 $ 237,500 $ 262,240 $ 296,875 $ 296,875 $ 2,892,986
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ment in the value of any of our real estate
assets in order to determine if there is any need
for a provision for valuation adjustment. In
reviewing the portfolio, we examine the type of
asset, the economic situation in the area in
which the asset is located, the economic situa-
tion in the industry in which the tenant is
involved and the timeliness of the payments
made by the tenant under its lease, as well as
any current correspondence that may have
been had with the tenant, including property
inspection reports. For each real estate asset
owned for which indicators of impairment exist,
recognition of impairment is required if the cal-
culated value is less than the asset’s carrying

amount. We generally do not obtain any inde-
pendent appraisals in determining value but rely
on our own analysis and valuations. Any provi-
sion taken with respect to any part of our real
estate portfolio will reduce our net income and
reduce assets and stockholders’ equity to the
extent of the amount of the valuation adjust-
ment, but it will not affect our cash flow until
such time as the property is sold.

PURCHASE ACCOUNTING FOR ACQUI-
SITION OF REAL ESTATE
The fair value of the real estate acquired is allo-
cated to the acquired tangible assets, consisting
of land and building, and identified intangible

assets and liabilities, consisting of the value of
above-market and below-market leases and
other value of in-place leases based in each
case on their fair values. The fair value of the
tangible assets of an acquired property (which
includes land and building) is determined by
valuing the property as if it were vacant, and the
“as-if-vacant” value is then allocated to land
and building based on management’s determi-
nation of relative fair values of these assets. The
allocation made by management may have a
positive or negative effect on net income and
may have an effect on the assets and liabilities
on the balance sheet.

Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures about Market Risk

For the Year Ended December 31
There-

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 after Total FMV
Long term debt:
Fixed rate $   4,717 $ 12,942 $   9,998 $ 22,264 $ 8,538 $169,464 $227,923 $229,803

weighted average 
interest rate 6.51% 6.50% 6.50% 6.39% 6.33% 6.33% 6.36% 6.25%

Variable rate - - - - - - - -

All of our long-term mortgage debt bears inter-

est at fixed rates and accordingly, the effect of

changes in interest rates would not impact the

amount of interest expense that we incur under

these mortgages. Our credit line is a variable

rate facility which is sensitive to interest rates.

Therefore, our primary market risk exposure is

the effect of changes in interest rates on the 

interest cost of draws on our line of credit.

Under current market conditions, we do not

believe that our risk of material potential losses

in future earnings, fair values and/or cash flows

from near-term changes in market rates that we

consider reasonably possible is material.

The fair market value (FMV) of our long term

debt is estimated based on discounting future

cash flows at interest rates that our manage-

ment believes reflect the risks associated with

long term debt of similar risk and duration.

The following table sets forth our long-term

debt obligations by scheduled principal cash

flow payments and maturity date, weighted

average interest rates and estimated FMV at

December 31, 2006 (amounts in thousands):
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Board of Directors and Officers

Fredric H. Gould
Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer;
Chairman of the Board of Trustees of BRT Realty Trust; President 
of REIT Management Corp., Advisor to BRT Realty Trust; Chairman 
of Georgetown Partners, Inc., Managing General Partner of Gould
Investors L.P.; Director of EastGroup Properties, Inc. 

Patrick J. Callan, Jr.
Director; President.

Marshall Rose
Director; Chairman of The Georgetown Group, Inc., a Real Estate
Development Company; Chairman Emeritus of The New York 
Public Library.

Joseph A. Amato***
Director; Real Estate Developer; Managing Partner of the Kent
Companies.

Charles L. Biederman*  **
Director; Real Estate Developer; Principal of Sunstone Hotel 
Investors, LLC.

James J. Burns*  ***
Director; Vice Chairman and Senior Vice President of Wellsford Real
Properties, Inc.; Director of Cedar Shopping Centers, Inc.

Joseph A. DeLuca*
Director; Principal of Joseph A. DeLuca, Inc.; Principal of MHD 
Capital Partners, LLC.

J. Robert Lovejoy**
Director; Managing Director of Groton Partners, Merchant Bankers;
Director of Orient Express Hotels Ltd.

Eugene I. Zuriff**  ***
Director; President and Director of The Smith & Wollensky Restaurant
Group, Inc.; Director of Doral Federal Savings Bank.  

Jeffrey A. Gould
Director; Senior Vice President; Trustee, President and Chief Executive
Officer of BRT Realty Trust; Senior Vice President of Georgetown
Partners, Inc.

Matthew J. Gould
Director; Senior Vice President; President of Georgetown Partners,
Inc.; Vice President of REIT Management Corp; Trustee and Senior 
Vice President of BRT Realty Trust.

David W. Kalish
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer; Senior Vice
President-Finance of BRT Realty Trust; Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer of Georgetown Partners, Inc. 

Simeon Brinberg
Senior Vice President; Senior Vice President and Secretary of BRT
Realty Trust; Senior Vice President of Georgetown Partners, Inc.

Israel Rosenzweig
Senior Vice President; Senior Vice President of BRT Realty Trust;
Senior Vice President of Georgetown Partners, Inc.; President of 
GP Partners, Inc.

Mark H. Lundy
Senior Vice President and Secretary; Senior Vice President of BRT
Realty Trust; Senior Vice President of Georgetown Partners, Inc.

Lawrence G. Ricketts, Jr.
Executive Vice President.

Karen Dunleavy
Vice President, Financial and Treasurer; Treasurer of Georgetown
Partners, Inc.

Richard M. Figueroa
Vice President and Assistant Secretary; Vice President of Georgetown
Partners, Inc.

Alysa Block
Assistant Treasurer; Assistant Treasurer of BRT Realty Trust.

*Member of the Audit Committee
**Member of the Compensation Committee

***Member of the Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee

EXECUTIVE OFFICES
60 Cutter Mill Road, Suite 303
Great Neck, NY 11021
516-466-3100
REGISTRAR, TRANSFER AGENT, 
DISTRIBUTION DISBURSING AGENT
American Stock Transfer and Trust Company
59 Maiden Lane, New York, NY 10038
212-936-5100     800-937-5449
AUDITORS
Ernst & Young LLP
5 Times Square, New York, NY 10036

FORM 10-K AVAILABLE
A copy of the annual report (Form 10-K) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission may be
obtained without charge by writing to the
Secretary, One Liberty Properties, Inc., 60 Cutter
Mill Road, Suite 303, Great Neck, NY 11021 or by
accessing our web site.

COMMON STOCK
The Company’s common stock is listed on the New
York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol OLP.
ANNUAL MEETING
The annual meeting will be held on June 12, 2007 at
the Company’s Executive Offices at 9:00 a.m.
DISTRIBUTIONS
Distributions are paid on or about the first business
day of January, April, July and October.
WEB SITE ADDRESS

www.onelibertyproperties.com

ONE LIBERTY
PROPERTIES, INC.

In 2006, our chief executive officer’s certification regarding the New York Stock Exchange’s corporate governance listing standards was filed with the New York
Stock Exchange without qualification and in a timely fashion. In addition, the certifications of our chief executive officer, president and chief financial officer, filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act with respect to the quality of our public disclosure, have been filed as
exhibits to our most recently filed annual report on Form 10-K.
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